Wrightsville Beach
Board of Adjustment Meeting

5:00 p.m. WEDNESDAY, JUNE 29, 2022
Wrightsville Beach Town Hall Council Chambers
321 Causeway Drive, Wrightsville Beach, NC

AGENDA (The Board will follow quasi-judicial procedures for hearings.)

1. Call to Order.

2. Approval of minutes of August 26, 2021.

3. Conduct a public hearing to consider an appeal from a decision by
the UDO Administrator regarding the interpretation of lot frontage
for a new structure proposed for 14 Mallard Street

4. Adjournment

CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES REQUIRING SPECIAL NEEDS TO ACCESS THE SERVICES OR PUBLIC
MEETINGS OF WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH GOVERNMENT SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER’S
OFFICE FIVE DAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING BY CALLING (910) 256-7900.



MINUTES
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
AUGUST 26, 2021

Alderman Partin called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. in Council Chambers of Town
Hall. 321 Causeway Drive, Wrightsville Beach, North Carolina.

Attendance: Alderman Zeke Partin, Former Mayor Bill Blair, First Alternate Catherine
Brunjes, Second Alternate Cheryl Koballa, and Third Alternate Jeff Turpin; together with Town
Attorney Brian E. Edes, Town Manager Timothy W. Owens and Town Clerk Sylvia J. Holleman.

ELECTION OF ACTING CHAIRMAN.

Mr. Blair made the motion to elect Alderman Partin to serve as Acting Chairman for this
meeting. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Brunjes and unanimously approved.

Pledge of Allegiance.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 22, 2021.

Mrs. Koballa made the motion to approve the minutes of July 22, 2021 as presented.
The motion was seconded by Mr. Turpin and approved with a 4-0 vote. (Mr. Blair did not vote;
he said he was not present on July 22, 2021.)

CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT TO CONSIDER A
REQUEST FROM IAN AND LAURA BLAIR OF 103 WEST SALISBURY STREET FOR A 2’
VARIANCE FROM THE REAR SETBACK REQUIREMENTS. FOR THE CANTILEVER
SECOND FLOOR TUB AREA. (CONTINUED FROM JUNE 24 AND JULY 22, 2021 MEETINGS.)

Town Attorney Brian Edes: “This is going to be applicable to both variance items. The
applicants are entitled to a fair and impartial decision-making body. So, we're going to conduct
this in a quasi-judicial manner. First, we'll have an evidentiary hearing. The applicant has the
burden of proof to meet the criteria as stated in the agenda packet. Although, with the passage
of 160-D as of July 1%, the second criteria also states, ‘A variance may be granted when
necessary and appropriate to make a reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair
Housing Act for a person with a disability.’ We'll get to that later. But to the extent the applicant
is entitled to a fair and impartial decision-making body, | need to ask you a few questions. To
the Board as a whole, with respect to this first variance, does anyone have a financial interest in
the subject matter of that variance? (All responded no.) Does anyone have a close or familial
relationship with the applicant? (All responded no.) Has anyone made a site visit to the site for
the purposes of this variance application?” Following a brief discussion to clarify the question for
the Board members. Mr. Edes asked if the Board members had made a site visit for the
purposes of assessing the subject matter of this application. (All responded no.) Mr. Edes
continued, “Has anyone had any ex parte conversations with the staff about the subject matter
of this application; by ex parte | mean outside of the context of tonight's hearing? (All replied
no.) Same question, have you had any ex parte contact with any of the folks that are with the
applicant? (All responded no.) Can any of you think of any reason why you cannot be fair and
impartial tonight and base your vote solely on the competent and relevant evidence that's
produced during this hearing? (All responded no.) We're going to conduct this in a manner to
insure due process, but substantive due process with procedures. All witnesses that want to
provide testimony must first be sworn in. They will then be subject to cross examination and
questions from the Board. | suggest, and | think our Code of Ordinances requires, that staff will
go first. Mr. Wilson will introduce the item. He will be subject to cross examination and then any
questions from the Board. | would recommend that we let the cross examination occur first; that
way the Board has heard all of the witness testimony, then you can ask questions. You will then
proceed to hear from the applicant, and anyone else after the applicant. Again, the applicant will
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be subject to cross examination and questions from the Board. Then we will hear from anyone
else who's sworn in that has standing with respect to this subject matter. Do you have any
questions of me before we get started? (All replied no.) At the conclusion of the evidence, I'll do
a quick inventory of the evidence. I'll give the applicant an opportunity to point out any errors
I've made. We will then close the evidentiary hearing and you will begin your deliberation.
Unless there are any questions, | would ask all those who intend to provide testimony to come
forward and be sworn in.”

Acting Chair Partin administered the oath to those wishing to provide testimony.

Planning and Parks Director Tony Wilson introduced the item as follows: “This is a
variance hearing to 155.6.5.1(F) Zoning District Development Standards in the R-1
Residential District. lan and Laura Blair are requesting a variance to this zoning ordinance —
Zoning District Development Standards in the R-1 District. The property is located at 103
West Salisbury Street. It is also in the R-1 Residential District. The applicant is requesting a
variance to this section. Their attorney, Samuel Franck (the authorized agent for lan and
Laura Blair) is not here tonight. His partner is. So we see the setbacks; this is a conforming
lot so the setbacks are fifteen feet front, sides and rear. The zoning permit and the site plan
were approved on June 7, 2021. The site plan indicated that the setbacks were fifteen feet
front, fifteen feet sides and rear. The roof overhang and the HVAC stand were also
indicated on the site plan. The cantilevered tub area was not indicated on the original site
plan but the cantilevered tub was shown — we’ll go over that in a few minutes — was shown
on the second floor building plan that was submitted. At Wrightsville Beach, we did get
multiple surveys. We received a foundation survey on January 13, 2021 indicating no
encroachments at that time. Of course, it wouldn’t have shown up at that time but it showed
up later down the road; months and months later. So, sometime around April 7, 2021. Whit
Honeycutt, of North State Custom Homes, who is the contractor for 103; he did notify me in
August that he felt there was an issue with the cantilever tub area on the second floor. After
a site visit and discussion about this encroachment with the contractor and the designer,
staff met with the Town Manager. We directed that the contractor get legal advice on how to
proceed, either with a variance, text amendment, or move the encroachment. The applicant
is seeking a two-foot variance from their rear lot setback for just the six-foot tub area at 103
West Salisbury Street. Again, the setback is fifteen feet. Analysis: The majority of the
residential lots at Wrightsville Beach are nonconforming properties due to the lot size and
lot width. The setbacks for these nonconforming properties are fifteen feet front; seven and
a half for the sides and rear. Most structures, if they adhere to those setbacks on the
nonconforming lots, there’s a fifteen-foot separation. Typically, if you had the conforming
lots, it would be a thirty-foot separation. If this variance is granted, this property is separated
by at least seventy-five feet from the rear properties; that would be the Lookout Harbor
Townhouses. The variance request is authorized by the zoning code regulations in the
Town Code. In order to grant a variance, the applicant must meet all four findings of fact
outlined in 155.4.4.2 of the zoning code and that's on page three of your packet. Also, on
page four, you have the 155.4.4.8 Board of Adjustment Action on Appeals and Variances, it
gives you some direction. The legal notice for this hearing was first announced on June
24t As you know, it's been opened and continued the last two meetings. We changed the
dates on the sign just recently before this meeting for tonight. Requested Action is, ‘As
deemed appropriate by the Board of Adjustment.’” I'm going to go through my power point
on the TV screen here. So you see, this is the rear of the house facing Lookout Harbor. You
see this area here is the roof overhang, which is allowed in the setbacks. And this is the six-
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foot tub area here on the second level that we see that is the encroachment. This is from
the side looking at it here from the water side. You can see that two-foot encroachment for
the tub area. And, this is the existing survey for the pilings. Of course, like | said, it would
not show up here at all. You see all the numbers look good. In your attachments, you have
the application and supporting documentation; sections of the zoning code; site plan;
second floor floorplan; the left side elevation; the foundation survey; and then emails
between myself, the contractor, and the designer of this. If you've got any questions for me,
I'll be glad to try to answer them or for the attorney, either one.”

Mr. Bill Blair; “I've got a few.” Acting Chair Partin: “| have one...”

Mr. Bill Blair: “Tony, when did you issue the building permit for that house?” Acting
Chair Partin asked if this was the proper time for questions. Mr. Edes: “It is proper but |
thought we agreed at the beginning that we're going to let...... » Acting Chair Partin: “Okay.”
Mr. Bill Blair: “Okay. That's fine.” Mr. Edes: “....wait for cross examination. That way, you've
heard everything from the witness.” Acting Chair Partin: “Right.” Mr. Edes: “Any cross?” Mr.
Cogburn: “I have no questions.” Mr. Edes: “Madam Chair, no one wishes to cross Mr.
Wilson, so he is now subject to questions from the Board.”

Mr. Bill Blair: “When was the building permit issued, Tony?” Mr. Wilson: “The zoning
permit was issued June 7, 2021. I'm assuming, Mr. Blair, it was a week or so after that. I
don’t have that information right in front of me.” Mr. Bill Blair: “And when you approved this
zoning permit in June, did you have an approved set of plans?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes, we had
that set of plans that showed — if you look in your packet, let's go to our packet for that
information. If you go to page 22 — on page 22, you see the site plan there. And on the site
plan, it shows the roof overhang; the HVAC stand: it does not show the cantilever tub area
on that one. But you turn to page 23, and on 23 on the lower diagram there, you see the tub
area there — the six-foot tub area that sticks out there. Staff should have picked that up; we
didn’t see that: | didn't see that. So, if we had looked real careful there, we could have seen
that, but we did not. And sometimes the cantilevers are difficult to see.”

Acting Chair Partin: “This was in the original?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes. When they
submitted the zoning documents, they submitted the site plan and the drawings with that,
yes.” Acting Chair Partin: “Would you go back to that first picture, please, that shows the
side view? It looks like to me, it doesn’t go past the overhang that was approved.” Mr.
Wilson: “Right.” Acting Chair Partin: “If it wasn't there..... " Mr. Wilson: “Yes. If that wasn't
there. it would be fine. The roof overhang and gutters. There’s like twelve things that can be
in the setback. You see your HVAC stand on the bottom there; they're allowed four feet into
the setback. It's just that cantilever is not there.” Mr. Bill Blair: “The AC standards are
allowed in the code, right?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes.” Mr. Bill Blair: “The cantilever is not.” Mr.
Wilson: “Exactly. Yes, sir.” Mr. Bill Blair: “I've just got to ask; this set of prints here, you say
were approved a week or so after the zoning permit?” Mr. Wilson: “No, they were submitted
the same time as the zoning permit.” Mr. Bill Blair: “You signed off on these?” Mr. Wilson:
“Yes.” Mr. Bill Blair: “And you signed off on the plans with the cantilever on the plans, is that
what I'm hearing?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes, sir.” Mrs. Brunjes: “You don’t see it on page whatever
that is..” Mr. Bill Blair: “It's on 23.” Mrs. Brunjes: “On 22, you don't see the second floor; you
only see the first floor. So then when you turn it over, you get to the second floor floorplan,
it's there...” Mr. Wilson: “And also on page 24. If you go to page 24, of course it gets easier
to see that now after staff looked at it. But on page 24, you see it also.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Was
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it there when you....” Mr. Wilson: “Yes.” Mrs. Brunjes: ‘It was there.” Mr. Bill Blair:
“Obviously staff didn’t pay much attention to looking at the plans.” Mr. Wilson: “Well, no, you
know, we’re very busy. Looking at it, we could have done a better job.” Acting Chair Partin:
“But it doesn’t extend beyond the gutter area.” Mr. Wilson: “No.” Mrs. Koballa: “Tony, when
was it brought to your attention that this was an issue?” Mr. Wilson: “By the contractor on
April the 71" Mrs. Brunjes: “And how did he realize it?" Mr. Wilson: “You know, when they
get up here, | think you can ask him that question. I'm not sure exactly when he saw it but
he came in and brought it right to my attention.” Mrs. Brunjes: “And owned up to it?” Mr.
Wilson: “Yes.” Mrs. Koballa: “So, the zoning stuff was done June 7" but he brought it to
your attention before that.” Mr. Wilson: “June 7t was 2020. (Everyone speaking at once.)
Acting Chair Partin: “I was confused, t00.”

Mr. Turpin: “I've got a question. You can build a house like this all the time; it's just if
it had been slid forward two feet, and there’s plenty of room in the front; he could have slid it
forward two feet and built it this way all day long, right? In fact, he could have built it six feet
out as long as it was forward six feet, right?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay. So,
you looked at the survey... not that picture but the other one where it shows the survey.....
you can't really tell from that because the house could have been built forward.” Mr. Wilson:
“Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “You could move it forward as much as you want. If you could have
ten feet out in the back — as long as it fits, right? Mr. Wilson: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay.
So, when he designed the house, there was nothing inherently wrong with this cantilever
system; there’s nothing wrong with it. It's just that when he actually built it, the two feet back
should have been two feet forward?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay. And | could
see you missing that because there’s not a problem with it. It's not uncommon. The house
on Lumina is being built that way.” Acting Chair Partin: “But it must have been slid forward.”
Mr. Turpin: “Yes, it was. That was the compromise; it got moved. It was going to be in the
setback and it got moved.” Mr. Bill Blair: “Prior to the plans being approved?” Mr. Turpin:
“That's right. Well, it was part of this process.”

Mrs. Koballa: “Did they have any room to move it forward?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes, | think
there was some room there.” Mrs. Koballa: “Well, the fifteen-foot setback — what there is,
maybe five feet to the utility easement.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Now, are you saying move the whole
house forward?” Mr. Turpin: “When it was built.” Mrs. Brunjes: “| was going to say | think it's
a little late for that.” Mrs. Koballa: “He just wanted to clarify that it could have been.” Mr.
Turpin: “I just wanted to say that the cantilever is not the issue; the issue is when it was
constructed: it was constructed two feet over. They could have built it over two feet and
there wouldn’t have been a problem.” Mrs. Brunjes: “I got that part.” Mr. Bill Blair: “It looks
like to me they were built per the plans that were approved by the Town in the place that it
was approved for. They could have done a lot of stuff there. Am | wrong, Tony?” Mr. Wilson:
“No. | think you're right. For me, and then for others, we should be catching these things
when we don't. In a perfect world, it doesn’t have to come down to this. So, where we could
have caught it, just saying — okay, you’re not showing it on your foundation plans, can you
move it up?” Mr. Bill Blair: “| mean, it's a different set of circumstances if somebody could
have cantilevered the tub, but the set of plans that you approved that wasn't there to start
with: that's a whole different thing, | think.” Mrs. Brunjes: Yes, | agree.” Mr. Wilson: “It is.”
Mr. Bill Blair: “That's all I've got.” Mr. Edes: “Any other questions?” Acting Chair Partin: "Any
other questions?” (No response) Mr. Edes: “Does the applicant wish to cross Mr. Wilson
based on this testimony to the Board?” Mr. Cogburn: “I| have no questions.”
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Mr. Edes: “Before we start, does the applicant have any objections to receiving
pages 2-27 of the agenda packet into evidence as Exhibit A?” Mr. Cogburn: “No.” Mr. Edes:
“And the power point Mr. Wilson just showed as Exhibit B.” Mr. Cogburn: “No objections.”
Mr. Edes: “Madam Chair, we will receive into evidence both pages 2-27 in the agenda
packet relating to this application as Exhibit A and Mr. Wilson's power point that he
displayed for the Board a few moments ago as Exhibit B without objection.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Okay.”

Mr. Cogburn: “Good evening Madam Chair and distinguished members of the Board
of Adjustment. My name is Clint Cogburn. I'm a land use attorney with the Law Firm of
Ward and Smith, here on behalf of the applicant for this variance. The owner of 103 West
Salisbury Street, Mr. lan Blair, is here with me this evening; Additionally, here with me as
well, is Mr. Whit Honeycutt...... the owner of State Custom Homes and the contractor for
this project, you'll hear from him shortly and he’ll provide testimony on some of the specifics
regarding the submittal of the plans, the review of plans, when this was caught, the build-out
of the upper structure, and so on. As Mr. Wilson laid out in detail — and we appreciate his
very thorough staff report — we are here seeking an 18-inch variance to the rear setback
requirement in R-1; which as Mr. Wilson sent forward is a 15-foot setback. And that's to
allow for an existing cantilever portion of a second-floor bathroom located in the roofline of
the structure. And, we're seeking this request to avoid substantial expense, time delay,
labor that the Blairs and Mr. Honeycutt and others would incur, if forced to potentially tear
out a large portion of the back of the house and of the existing structure to remediate that
minor encroachment into the setback. As Mr. Wilson set forth, this is a single-family
residential structure located between two other residential structures along West Salisbury.
And it's located right where the old Pizza Hut used to be located. It's bounded by a home
owned by the Jacksons to the west and a home owned by Guy Wiggins to the east, and by
the common elements of Lookout Harbor to the south — and to the south is where there’s
the most immediate adjoined parcel — so the common elements to the south. | will now call
up Mr. Whit Honeycutt to provide some testimony into the specifics regarding the project
and the encroachment.” (5:20 p.m.)

Mr. Honeycutt: “Good evening. | was retained by the Blairs to build a custom home
on 103 Salisbury Street. Sullivan Design Company created the structure for the Blairs.” Mr.
Edes: “Excuse me, sir. If you would just identify who you are for the record.” Mr. Honeycutt:
“My name is Whit Honeycutt. I'm an unlimited general contractor. My company name is
officially the North State Partners Construction, LLC. We do business as North State
Custom Builders. I'm the owner, sole — it's a single member LLC and | am the owner.” Mr.
Edes: “I'm just saying that Madam Clerk there is the one taking down the minutes and this is
for her sake.” Mr. Honeycutt: “This is my first time.... So, did you hear all of that Ms.
Holleman?” Ms. Holleman: “Yes.” Mr. Honeycutt: “So, the Blairs retained me; they retained
Sullivan Design Company independently. Sullivan Design Company created the structure —
a great house. It's a nice asset for Salisbury Street and anchors that corner of Banks
Channel. I'm proud of the house. | think it turned out great. Scott Sullivan confessed to a
mistake when it was brought to his attention where he did his site plan, he did not include a
second-story bump out of a shower-tub on his site plan. We began looking at these plans
months before we submitted for a permit and half a year before we actually laid out the
house — to build a house. There was nothing to be gained by it being crowding in the back.
There was absolutely no benefit by the house encroaching into the setback. The house
could have, to your point Mr. Turpin, it could have easily been 18 inches forward. It wouldn’t
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have changed anything. It didn’t improve the view. It didn’t do anything whatsoever. There
was no gain, no incentive to leave that off the site plans. It was an honest mistake. So, to
catch that honest mistake, Mr. Wilson and my company and whoever was surveying would
have had to take that site plan and then flip back through as we’re laying out the house
much later and as he’s looking at the plans with all the plans that he’s looking at, go up to
the top floor floorplan and a bell would have to go off that that's cantilevered out. Nothing
showed up on the roof plan. When you look at the roof plan, which he looks at, | don't look
at, it doesn’t show any cantilever because it's inside the roof — it's inside the soffit. So, your
one chance to catch it would have been to look at that top floor floorplan and then
understand that you've got a cantilever and bring that back to Scott’s attention that you
didn’t include that on the site plan. The surveyor could have done that. Zoning could have
done that. | could have done that. Nobody caught it. So, when they were laying out the
house next to us, that's when we figured out that there was an encroachment. And the day
when | found it out, | came to confess to Tony Wilson that there was an honest mistake
made and there was an issue and ask what we could do to remedy the situation. He talked
it over with his staff and folks and came back and said you’ll just have to apply for a
variance. That's why we're here today. | guess | could have hoofed it. We've already been
through half of the inspections. We've already been through a framing inspection — it's
about six different inspections and nobody caught it. If they hadn’t laid off Guy’s house, |
probably still wouldn’t have caught it. So, whether they would have caught it on the
Certificate of Occupancy inspection, who knows. Would somebody have complained about
it later? | can’t tell you..... The neighbors to left and to the right both felt strongly enough to
write letters of support for us. I'm a resident of Wrightsville Beach. | live right behind it in
Lookout Harbor. | sent a letter out to all of our homeowners and confessed my mistake. |
took responsibility for it as the general contractor. And, at least to my knowledge, | didn’t get
any negative comments. Everybody was pretty sympathetic and could see how that could
happen. How we could miss it. How Tony could miss it. And, once the house is built, there’s
not a whole lot we can do other than rip the back of the house off. | would hate to do that;
the house is completed. They're waiting to move in. It's going to delay their move by a
month and somebody is going to end up spending a whole lot of money to do that. We're
going to weaken the structure by ripping the back of the house off. It's an honest mistake
that was confessed and begged for leniency that the Board would understand that we
weren’t trying to ask forgiveness rather than permission. It just was a mistake that their
architect or home designer made. The surveyor didn’t catch it. | didn't catch it and Zoning
didn’t catch it. We built the house per the approved plan exactly in the position that it was
approved. My mistake was not catching the home designer's mistake. I'd be happy to
answer any questions. That's really all | know about it. It's pretty simple; we just didn’t catch
a mistake — an honest mistake that the home designer made. We built it per the approved
plan and that was with about an 18-inch encroachment into the rear setback.”

Mr. Edes: “You are subject to questions. Tony, do you have any questions?” Mr.
Cogburn: “Can we save cross examination until completion of our presentation?” Mr. Edes:
“| want to do it witness by witness. That's the way we normally do it.” Mr. Cogburn: “We had
planned a presentation and we will all be available for cross examination at the end, if it's
agreeable.” Mr. Edes: “Well, | don’t think staff is going to have any cross. The Board may
and the way we normally do it is as each witness testifies.” Mr. Cogburn: “Okay.” Mr. Edes:
“Madam Chair, if you want to vary from that procedure, that’s fine.” Acting Chair Partin:
“No....” Mr. Edes: “And I'm not trying to be difficult.”
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Mr. Edes: “I just have one quick question. Mr. Honeycutt, | believe you just
addressed it for me: Mr. Wilson said approximately two feet and | think | just heard you say
it's 18 inches.” Mr. Honeycutt: “The bump out is two feet but the home designer placed the
six-inch buffer: he didn’t go all the way to — he didn’t lay the house out — he gave us six feet
for margin for error. Unfortunately, he made a two-foot mistake. So, the net of that is an 18-
inch encroachment — approximately. It's really hard to get up there.” Acting Chair Partin: “In
our information, it's two feet and now you're saying basically it's 18 inches.” Mr. Honeycutt:
“| think that was probably misconstrued from the two-foot bump out. That is easy to see
because that part is on the plan. What's not really easy is that it was 15 feet 6 inches from
the main structure to the rear setback. From the best of my recollection.” Mr. Edes: “And
Exhibit A contains the representation that it is 18 inches and in testimony, it's 18 inches. Mr.
Wilson, do you have reason to contest that?” Mr. Wilson: “No.” Mr. Edes: “I think we can
stipulate that it's 18 inches. That's all | have. Does the Board have any questions of Mr.
Honeycutt?” Acting Chair Partin: “Anybody have any questions?” (No questions.)

Mr. Cogburn: ‘I will keep my remaining remarks brief. We appreciate Mr. Honeycutt
for providing additional background. Going off of what Mr. Honeycutt just testified to, | want
to speak to what requirements and obligations we're required to meet before the Board here
tonight. The Town’s requirements of the issuance of a variance are set forth in section
155.4.4.2 of the Town’s UDO which are consistent with the statutory requirements set forth
in the North Carolina General Statutes. Those are the four distinct prongs. Now, I'll go over
them prong by prong applying what you just heard from Mr. Honeycutt and from staff and
show you why we meet each of those distinct requirements and why a variance should be
granted in this case. The first prong is showing that an unnecessary burden would occur if a
variance is not granted. Based upon the testimony of Mr. Honeycutt, it's clear that strict
application of the UDO and requirements related to the setback, would require significant
reconstruction of the residence as Mr. Honeycutt testified to. They, essentially, would have
to go in and tear out the back portion of the house. It would cost a significant amount; it
would keep the Blairs from moving in and fully moving in to their residence. It would cost
time and money to Mr. Honeycutt and the associated trades there, so it would be a very
difficult process for a very minor encroachment. The second prong that we have to meet
says if this resulted from peculiar conditions. Here the violation of the UDO or the minor
encroachment exists because of the distinct location of the residence on the property. This
is not an issue common to the neighborhood and it's not an issue that the Blairs caused.
The third prong is that the violation or the encroachment does not result from the applicant’s
actions. Again, as Mr. Honeycutt testified to and as Mr. Wilson testified to, the Blairs did not
create this problem. They relied on the building plans proposed by their designer and
contractor and also relied upon the Town’'s variance approval and reviews during this
process. The final prong that we are required to meet is that the request and the variance is
consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the UDO. Variances provide a way to properly
balance undue hardship; essentially balancing the equities here related to strict application of
the UDO and impact to the applicant. In this case, the Blairs reasonably believed that they
had fully complied with the UDO; again, relying on their designer, contractor and Town
officials. And, now they are facing the prospect, if this variance is not granted, of
demolishing the back portion of their house, having to spend thousands and thousands of
dollars to remediate this very, very minor issue. And, facing the prospect of not moving into
their home compared to the relief this Board could grant with the 18-inch variance allowing
that variance to move forward with an encroachment that, as Madam Chair pointed out, is
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within the overhang of the roof. It's not even jutting out there. It's consistent and lines up
with that overhang. Finally, we just want to touch on consistency with the neighborhood and
kind of the relative burdens here. For slide two, we just want to point out that no one else is
harmed by this encroachment or by our request. There is no disruption of the new view line
and the encroachment is adjacent to common elements... and nowhere near the closest
home in Lookout Harbor. So, it's not negatively impacting anyone. Additionally, we’re only
seeking a slight adjustment from the UDO and the setback is only violated by those 18
inches as we discussed here today. And that encroachment is entirely within the permitted
roofline of the structure here. You've already seen pictures of the house but here are some
additional pictures and views of how minor the encroachment is. Specifically on the view
line, view shed, and the like: it is barely distinguishable from the photos you've seen this
evening. Again, we're not asking for a considerable variance. The lot would still have a 15-
foot side setback complying with the UDO. It would just have an approximately, closer to a
13-foot setback with that 18-inch variance. Additionally, as Mr. Honeycutt pointed out, we do
have letters from the adjoining property owners. Both the Jacksons and Guy Wiggins, who
own the adjoining properties — | don’t know if the Board has those.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Yes,
they’re in our packet.” Mr. Cogburn: “I just wanted to make sure so | brought copies just in
case. But, as you can see in those letters, they have no issue with it. Not only do they not
have an issue, they support our request here tonight, which we think is an important part of
our evidence. Finally, the relative burdens here, to kind of sum it up; the additional burden
that's on the neighbors is negligible. Again, the neighbors are entirely in support of it. There
is no impact, really, to anybody — any adjacent property owner or anybody in the
community. There's no negative impact whatsoever that we can see..... However, if the
Board elects to deny this request... the impact to the Blairs will be significant; time, money,
loss of use of their house. It is a considerable cost to them if this variance isn’t granted. So,
we believe that this is the exact type of situation that variances were made for. A minor
violation without the knowledge or intent of the Blairs, and where denying the request would
cost them a significant amount. So, we respectfully ask that the Board grant this variance.
We appreciate the Board’s time and I'm happy to answer any questions.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Does anyone have any questions?” Mr. Edes: “Madam Chair, | have one.” Acting
Chair Partin: “Okay.” Mr. Edes: “Mr. Cogburn, would you like to introduce your power point
as Exhibit C?” Mr. Cogburn: “Yes | would. And as you pointed out, | don’t know if you
needed to do that if it's already in there — but those letters as well.” Mr. Edes replied, “Yes,
they are part of the agenda packet in Exhibit A. Normally, that's hearsay because those
neighbors aren’t here. But they received proper notice and..... if they objected to it, we'd
likely hear from them tonight; so | don’t mind the letters coming in; they're already in the
evidence.”

Mr. Turpin: “l have a question.” Mr. Edes: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “I'm having difficulty
with number three. It says ‘the hardship did not result from the actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner.” Does that extend to the property owner's contractor
because the property owner selected the contractor; the property owner selected the
architects. So, if the architect made the mistake or the builder made the mistake, does that
extend to the property owner? Or is it just the property owner proper?” Mr. Cogburn: “We
would submit that it does not. The applicant here, I'm speaking on behalf of the Blairs as the
property owners. Again, our point is that they reasonably relied upon their contractor, their
designer, and even the Town approvals here.” Mr. Turpin: “I got that. So, this definition
doesn’t extend: it only relates to the property owners themselves? Mr. Cogburn: “We would
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submit that,,,,” Mr. Turpin: “Is that right?” Mr. Edes: “Well, that's for the Board to decide but |
_...” Mr. Turpin: “That’s not clear.” Mr. Edes: “Right, and | think under these facts, and I'm
not the decision maker but you asked me; | do not think the property owners created this
hardship.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay. So, to answer my question, if the contractor makes a mistake
and it's not of the knowledge of the property owner, it doesn’t count.” Mr. Edes: “l think it's
case-by-case basis, sir. But in this case, not only did the contractor not catch it, or the
architect, the Town, itself, issued a permit allowing them to build what was depicted on
those pans and it's in that configuration.” Mr. Turpin: “So, you think he meets the test in
number three?” (Everyone talking at once.) Mr. Turpin: “| understand. | think that’s a point of
— I'm reading the statute here. This is the statute; I'm not an attorney, | was reading the
statute.” Mr. Edes: “I understand and | applaud you for it but...” Mr. Turpin: “Okay.
Understand.” Mr. Cogburn: “But we would, again, submit that the mistake was not made by
the Blairs...... But, if it's denied, they're shouldering the burden...” Mr. Turpin: “We can
understand all that, but that doesn't really figure into this decision process on that. On this
number three, it says if they make the mistake...” Mr. Cogburn: “And | understand.” Mr.
Edes: “As Town Attorney, ....if the conclusion of the Board of Adjustment is that they meet
the third criteria, | don’t have any heartburn about that. If that answers your question.” Mr.
Turpin: “Okay. That's what | was looking for. Thank you.”

Mr. Edes: “Staff has no cross. Do you have any other witnesses, Mr. Cogburn?” Mr.
Cogburn: “That’s the conclusion of our evidence.” Mr. Edes: “Any other questions? Does
anyone else in the audience signed up to speak on this matter?” A gentleman in the
audience raised his hand. Acting Chair Partin: “He didn’t swear in.” Mr. Edes: “Have you
been sworn in.” Acting Chair Partin: “No. Put your hand on the bible. Do you swear or affirm
to tell the whole truth, nothing but the truth, so help you God?” The gentleman replied, “I
do.” Mr. Edes: “Let me ask you a few questions to determine whether you having standing.
Would you identify yourself?” Gentleman: “Yes. My name is Tom Hanna.” Mr. Edes: “And
do you own property near the subject property? Mr. Hanna: “Yes, right behind it.” Acting
Chair Partin: “Would you want him to give his street address?” Mr. Edes: “If you would.” Mr.
Hanna: “Yes, right behind the house.” Acting Chair Partin: What's your street address?” Mr.
Hanna: “Lookout Harbor.” Mr. Edes: “If it is adjacent to the property, | think he would have
standing. So, | recommend the Board allow — I'm sorry, your name again, one more time.”
Mr. Hanna: “Sure, Tom Hanna — H-a-n-n-a.” Mr. Edes: “Thank you, sir. | find that Mr. Hanna
has standing based on the proximity of his property to the subject property, so we'll hear
your testimony now.”

Mr. Hanna: “I've been on this beach since the mid-1980s.... I've known Whit for
probably eight or ten years and from my dealings with him, he’s a straight up guy. He's not
trying to gain the system or try to gain any type of advantage or do anything underhanded
with this bump-out here. I'm not even sure I'd consider it a mistake. It's more of an
oversight..... This stuff can happen easily. | live, basically, about a hundred feet behind that
and | drive by that building three or four times a day and | wasn't even aware of it until we
got the letter. So, that's how big a deal it is as far as I'm concerned. | think it really is not an
issue and I'd just like for you to know my opinion on that.” Acting Chair Partin: Thank you,
Mr. Hanna.” Mr. Edes: “Any cross examination? (No response) Any questions from the
Board? (All replied no.) Anyone else in the audience like to speak on this matter or provide
evidence? (No response). Madam Clerk, let the record reflect no one has indicated that they
want to testify. Madam Chair, at this point, I'm going to inventory the evidence unless Mr.
Cogburn has anything else he’d like to add.” Mr. Cogburn: “No.”
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Mr. Edes: “We first heard from Tony Wilson who introduced the matter; we then
accepted into evidence Exhibit A, which is pages 2-27 of the agenda packet related to this
application; we accepted as Exhibit B Mr. Wilson's power point, again without objection; we
then heard from the applicant's attorney, Mr. Cogburn; he described the request; we then
heard from Mr. Honeycutt: we then heard from Mr. Cogburn again, | would classify it as
somewhat of a summation; we received into evidence Exhibit C, which is Mr. Cogburn’s
power point; we then heard from Mr. Tom Hanna. Mr. Cogburn, is there anything you'd like
to add or comment on in the inventory?” Mr. Cogburn: “No.” Mr. Edes: “Thank you, sir.
Madam Chair, at this point, | would recommend we close the evidentiary portion of the
hearing and begin the deliberations. Is there a motion to close?” Acting Chair Partin: “Yes.
Is there a motion to close?” Mrs. Brunjes: “I move. (5:44 p.m.) Mr. Blair: “Second.” Acting
Chair Partin: “All in favor.” (Vote recorded as 5-0 in favor of the motion to close the hearing.)

Mr. Edes: “As you know from prior variance hearings, you can do this several ways.
Someone can make a motion to approve or deny and then discuss; or we can take it criteria
by criteria for the four criteria. If someone feels strongly that the variance should be
granted..” Mrs. Brunjes: “I feel strongly.” Acting Chair Partin: “So, we want to take it criteria
by criteria?” Mr. Edes: “Or you can make a motion to approve if you'd like and then if
someone disagrees, we can discuss.” Mrs. Brunjes: “I'm going to make a motion to approve
the variance.” Acting Chair Partin: “Do we have a second?” Mrs. Koballa: “I'll second.”
Acting Chair Partin: “So, do we need to ask for any further discussion?” Mr. Turpin: “| just
want to make sure y'all are comfortable with number three. | think all the rest of them — |
think he meets the test on all the rest except for number three. It says that the actions result
from the applicant or the property owner. And, if we... if he did not contribute, then | think
this is an easy decision — it did not result — in other words, he did not contribute to this — the
property owner.” Acting Chair Partin: “The applicant?” Mr. Turpin: “The applicant.” Acting
Chair Partin: “Which is kind of confusing because he didn’t really contribute but his builder
has.” Mrs. Koballa: “| think the fact that the Town approved it.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Yes.” Mrs.
Koballa: “..is the Achilles Heel. Had that not happened, then to me, the fact that they hired
the builder....” Mrs. Brunjes: “It would be a whole different case if it had not been approved
by the Town. Absolutely.” Mrs. Koballa: “That's the deal breaker.” Acting Chair Partin: So,
Mr. Edes, we have a motion to approve and a second, so, do y'all now want to vote?
Everybody ready to vote? (All replied yes.) All in favor of approval.” Mr. Edes: “Let the
record reflect that it's unanimous. Mr. Cogburn, | would ask that you draft the proposed
variance or order and send it to me. Sam has my email.” Mr. Cogburn: “Not a problem.”

CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT TO CONSIDER A
REQUEST FROM DR. HENRY TEMPLE AND MARGARET TEMPLE, OF 210 NORTH
CHANNEL DRIVE, FOR A 4’ VARIANCE FROM THE SIDE YARD SETBACK OF 7.5’ ON THE
SOUTH SIDE OF THE HOME TO INSTALL AN ELEVATOR. (CONTINUED FROM JUNE 24 AND
JULY 22, 2021 MEETINGS.)

Mr. Edes: “Mr. Nichols, you and your client, | believe, were here at the beginning of
the prior variance hearing, is that correct?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Edes: “You heard my
admonition to the Board as to what the rules were and the procedures?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes,
sir” Mr. Edes: “I'll do it all over again for this hearing if you'd like; or if you would like to
waive that.” Mr. Nichols: “We waive that.” Mr. Edes: “Thank you. Whenever you're ready,
we'll proceed.” Acting Chair Partin: “Brian, can you elaborate, since | wasn't at the last
meeting, what are you waiving?” Mr. Edes: “Waiving that spiel | give about the quasi-judicial
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proceedings.” Acting Chair Partin: “Okay, thank you.” Mrs. Brunjes: “He just meant at the
first hearing.” Mr. Edes: “Matt was here, | know Matt.” Acting Chair Partin: “We understand.”

Mr. Edes: “Just for the record, Mr. Wilson, you are still under oath from the prior first
hearing. Matt, are you okay with that?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes.”

Mr. Wilson: “Madam Chair and Members of the Board of Adjustment, this is a
request for a variance to 155.6.5.1(E) to Zoning District Development Standards in an R-1
District: 155.8.9(D)(G) and 155.8.1 Minimum Lot Requirements. Dr. Henry Temple and
Margaret Temple are requesting a variance to Section 155.6.5.1(E) in the zoning districts
there. This property is located at 210 North Channel Drive in the R-1 Residential District and
the applicant is requesting a 4-foot variance to this section. Attorney Matt Nichols is the
authorized agent for Dr. Henry Temple and Margaret Temple. On page 28 under 155.6.5.1;
you see that the side yard setbacks are 15 feet for a conforming lot. Then you look under
(D) and (G) under 155.8.9; it says ‘such expansion or enlargement shall not cause an
expansion or encroachment into the existing or required setback.” And in (G), it talks about
expansion or enlargement there. Then 155.8.1 Minimum Lot Requirements, it's 7.5 feet on a
nonconforming lot which is what this lot is. The applicant is seeking a 4-foot variance from
the side yard only for the setback for the proposed elevator. If the variance is approved, the
proposed elevator would have a 3.6 side yard setback to the property line and would be
more than 10 feet from the adjacent property to the south. Analysis: it is possible that the
applicant could install the proposed elevator in the front right hand corner of the house or in
the front porch area and meet the required setbacks without a variance. If the variance is
granted, the proposed elevator would be more than 10 feet from the adjacent property. So,
that's important — the 10-foot separation. Again, on page 29, the variance request is
authorized by the zoning code regulations in the Town of Wrightsville Beach. It must meet
all four findings of fact in 155.4.4.2 of the Zoning Code. On page 30, you see the Board of
Adjustment Action on Appeals and Variances. Public notice, again, this has been opened
and continued for the last two meetings. It has been advertised. The sites are still posted
today for this meeting tonight. Attachments: you have the application and supporting
documentation. I'm going to go through my power point real quick. So, we are requesting a
4-foot variance to the side yard setback. This is the house facing on North Channel and on
the right-hand corner of the house where the paim tree is, that's where it's going there —
planning to go if they get the variance.”

Acting Chair Partin: “So, you said it could go on the porch?” Mr. Wilson: “Well, staff's
opinion is it would take up a parking space, Let's say if you come out here, it may be in the
front setback here. If they put it here, it may interfere with their decking. So, the question is,
could it go over here? It may could; so, there may be a possibility right there.” Acting Chair
Partin: “So, is it going in the very back of that?” Mr. Wilson: “It's going right in here.” Acting
Chair Partin: “So, it's going in the front of it.” Mr. Wilson: “It's going on the side. So, you see
the survey here in the yellow, that's that front right-hand corner like we were looking at. You
see a marking there — the elevator. You see the 3-foot 6-inch setback there. That's the end
of that slide show. That corner | showed you, is this right here. This has the 7-foot 9-inch
setback now. This is the area where they would like the location. This porch is pretty
narrow: it's six and a half feet. So, there could be some issues if they put it in the porch
area. If they put it here, it may block a parking spot. This is North Channel here; so you're
looking this way. If you have any questions, I'll be glad to try to answer them.”
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Mr. Edes: “Mr. Wilson, would you like to introduce pages 28-44 of the agenda packet
as relating to this item as Exhibit A?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes.” Mr. Edes: “How about the power
point as Exhibit B?" Mr. Wilson; “Yes, sir.” Mr. Edes: “Mr. Nichols, do you have any
objections?” Mr. Nichols: “No, sir.” Mr. Edes: “"Madam Chair, staff Exhibit A and Exhibit B
into evidence without objection.” Acting Chair Partin: “Yes.” Mr. Edes: “Any cross
examination, Mr. Nichols, of Mr. Wilson?” Mr. Nichols: “No, sir.” Mr. Edes” Any questions
from the Board for Mr. Wilson?” Mrs. Brunjes: “I have one. The word ‘could’ bothers me. It
really bothers me a lot because it's real important.” Mr. Wilson: “So, the porch... is there a
possibility; the question is how much of the parking would this affect if you put it here?”
Acting Chair Partin: “Have they had an architect come in and advise?” Mrs. Brunjes: “| think
that would be important for us to know that” Mr. Edes: “It's probably best to put the
applicant’s intentions and actions — those questions to the applicant. You can certainly ask
Mr. Wilson what he knows.” Mr. Wilson: “Typically, they don’t. When we see elevator
projects, and we see them all the time, unless it's interior, typically, they fit them on the
outside. And you'll see it when Matt gets up, he’ll show you the power point on what they're
proposing there. So, typically, an architect is not involved.” Acting Chair_Partin: “So, the
owner kind of has a specific place he wants it?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes.” Acting Chair Partin: “And
he will share that with us?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes.” Mr. Blair: “You said architects aren’t involved
in elevators. Is it in this case or not as a rule?” Mr. Wilson: “Not in this case. In a lot of cases
— no.” Mr. Blair: “Really.” Mr. Wilson: “You'll see this one is fit on the outside of the house.
Typically, that's what we've been seeing on retrofits.” Mr. Blair: “You're talking about the
older houses?” Mr. Wilson: “On older houses, you see that. On newer houses, you do see
architects.” Acting Chair Partin: “| believe this house was built in the seventies; is that what |
was reading?” Mr. Wilson: “Sixties.” Acting Chair Partin: “Anybody else have any questions
at this time?” Mr. Edes: “Mr. Nichols, do you have any cross based on Mr. Wilson's
response to the Board's questions?” Mr. Nichols: “No.”

Mr. Edes “Before we start, | want to hand out — as | mentioned earlier prior to the first
hearing, the General Assembly passed N.C.G.S. 160-D and in doing so, they added a
sentence to the second criteria. I've underlined it. Mr. Nichols has a copy of that as well.
And this is applicable whether it's contained in our UDO or not.” Mr. Blair: “When was this
passed?” Mr. Edes: “July 15t.” Mr. Blair: “Of this year?” Mr. Edes: “Yes, sir. Madam Chair,
are we ready to proceed to hear from the applicant.” Acting Chair Partin: “|s everyone ready
to proceed? Yes we are, Mr. Edes.”

Mr. Nichols: “Good afternoon, Madam Chair and Members of the Board. Should |
first be sworn in?” Mr. Edes: “No.” Mr. Nichols: “Thank you. I'm here tonight representing Dr.
Temple and his wife, Margaret Temple, who are the owners and residents of the property at
210 North Channel Drive. We have a series of slides that | think will help explain the
request. We appreciate your time and consideration. Essentially, Dr. Temple and Mrs.
Temple would like to make their older home more accessible by installing a residential
elevator. Allowing the proposed elevator will ensure easy and safer access to their home.
(Shows slide of where the elevator would be.) Setbacks in that vicinity are not uniform. |
know the Board members are very familiar with North Channel Drive. This is an aerial view
of the Temple residence as shown in yellow. The next slide shows it a little bit closer.
Maybe talk about this as the presentation goes on. It is unique in the sense that the side
that the elevator is going to be proposed — the setbacks of the houses in that vicinity are not
uniform. So, the property that you would say would be most affected is the property
neighbor to the south, who does not object to this. In fact, he supports this request and I've
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got a letter from that property owner that | can hand out. His house is not set in line with the
Temple's. And | think that adds some unique characteristics to the request.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Which house is this?” Mr. Nichols: “Dr. Temple, his house is in yellow and the
neighbor that I'm speaking of is to the south of that or to the bottom of the page. In fact, if |
may, I'll just hand that letter out now. (Distributes copies of the letter to the Board.) And it's
from Richard E. Rowe, who's the manager of the LLC, and | don't think he referenced his
own property in there. So, what | did, | have a copy of his deed, which I'd like to hand out as
an Exhibit and also a printout of the tax card showing that he is in fact the owner of the
property at 208 North Channel Drive. So, I've got two copies of that deed.” Mr. Edes: “Can
we make that all one packet as Exhibit C?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes.” Mr. Edes: “This is so it's
easier on Madam Clerk. Madam Chair and Board members, just like the prior hearing, this
packet will be hearsay but since proper notice was provided and no one is here — it doesn’t
appear that anyone is here to testify. Mr. Nichols would like the Board to receive the letter,
the deed and the tax card into evidence as Exhibit C.” Mr. Nichols: “That would be great.
Thank you.” Mr. Edes: And Madam Chair, | can hand this out if you'd like.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Please.”

Mrs. Brunjes: “Did you say this is the manager of the property instead of the owner?”
Mr. Nichols: “It's an LLC. Do the Rowes live there?” Dr. Temple: “They're from Raleigh. It's
his fulltime beach house.....been there for many years.” Mr. Edes: “Matt, has your client
been sworn in?” Mr. Nichols: “No, he hasn't.” Mr. Edes: “Madam Clerk, we need to swear
Dr. Temple in.” Acting Chair Partin administered the oath to Dr. Temple. Mr. Edes: “Dr.
Temple, now that you're under oath, do you stand by your responses to the Board that you
gave before you were sworn in? The answers that you just gave.” Dr. Temple: “Oh, yes.”
Mr. Edes: “You didn’t testify under oath at that point, | just want the record to reflect that
you're endorsing what you already said, and now you are under oath.” Thank you.”

Mr. Nichols: “I was using the term ‘manager’ sort of in a legal sense....and to be the
manager of the LLC, it's not like the property manager.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Well, I'm the
manager of my children’s LLC but I'm not the owner. Rowe is the owner, right?” Mr. Nichols:
“That's what | understand.” Acting Chair Partin: “Sometimes people do put property in an
LLC....” Mr. Nichols: “So, the neighbor that | would say would be the most affected, again,
not only doesn’t object, he actually supports the request. We think that's significant. The
other thing | would mention and Mr. Wilson mentioned this, the lot is nonconforming. It's in
the R-1 District but it doesn’t meet the dimensional requirements, which requires seventy
feet of width and, in that sense, it falls under a different section of this code, which the
setback there is 7.5 feet. | think that's significant to point out, too. Here is the front street
view of the house. It's a very classic Wrightsville Beach cottage. It was, | think, built in the
sixties: so, it's over a half a century old. It's a wrap-around porch. It's a beautiful house. Dr.
Temple and Mrs. Temple have owned it since 1988, and from what | understand, it was a
summer house and Dr. Temple, when he retired, they moved there full time. So, they have
lived there and have been in the home and residents of the Town for some time. The
location of the proposed elevator is shown on this slid here and we really think that’s the
optimal, most efficient location for the elevator from utility and function of the property and
also architectural viewpoints of the house. So, that is what we have identified and we're
asking for a variance to put the elevator there. Here’s another vantage point to sort of show
you and, as Mr. Wilson mentioned, you would, | think, interfere with the parking in the front,
if it was in the front. | think having it on the side can give us some opportunities to do some
landscaping and perhaps some lattice work, if the Board permits, and we show that in some
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of the slides coming up. This is in the Board’s packet and, based upon the model of the
elevator that has been selected, we believe is Exhibit B in the Board’s packet, we have
identified that that's the variance we would need, which is roughly four feet to allow the
elevator to be put there. So, that’s the essence of the variance request. Again, this is Exhibit
D in the Board’s packet and a photograph of a similar-type unit that we received from the
contractor. Here’'s an example: Joe Smith, with Beach Butler, is the contractor and he
provided most of these photos. | don’t believe any of the photos are of Wrightsville Beach
property; these are other coastal properties as | understand it where he'’s installed
elevators. Here’s another version; this would be the ground floor. Again, we think the
location that's been selected would make it sort of less conspicuous and would not detract
from the architecture of the house. And then this is how it would essentially meet up with the
deck on the second floor. And I've got some more close-up photos of the Temple residence
coming but these are examples of the elevator. Then, this is a picture we had of some
screening and Dr. Temple certainly would be open to that if that's something the Board
would want to see or if the landscaping is preferred instead of this. If we did do the
screening, | would say this generally, that the variance request, if the Board is inclined to
grant the variance, and we certainly hope that you all are, but if you are inclined to grant this
variance, in talking with Tony before the hearing, it might not be a bad idea to have a couple
of extra inches in there so we're not back asking for another inch variance in case we have
to make a field adjustment and that sort of thing. We tried to ask for as minimal a variance
as we could get. So, it's maybe three or four additional inches that would allow the lattice
work. And maybe, once we get into the installation of it, the model that's selected in Exhibit
D would not change. We're not asking to put in a bigger elevator; we just want to make sure
we're covering the request if the variance is granted. And this is an example of..” Dr.
Temple: “It's the lattice we have in detail around the house. So, it would be more like this
kind of a covering from the street...” Acting Chair Partin: “Would match your other lattice.”
Dr. Temple: “Yes, instead of the flat.” Acting Chair Partin: “So, the whole thing would blend.”
Dr. Temple: “Yes.” Mr. Nichols: “So that would be something if the Board wanted to see
that, then they can match that and it would match their house. Here’s an aerial view of the
house. This is a good example of how, right at the Rowe property, the LLC property to the
south, is not a uniform front..... We're not putting this right directly next to their residence.”
Mrs. Brunjes: ‘I don’t understand that. Say that again.” Mr. Nichols: “The elevator will not be
immediately adjacent to their residence. It's going to be pulled forward. So, in other words,
they're not looking out of their side window at the elevator. It's not immediately next to their
residence. Granted, it is next door..... but an elevator on the side would be sort of impacting
space and it doesn't create a safety issue between structures and things like that because
the Temple residence is pulled forward and there’s a setback. So, there’s more than | think
is in the staff report; there’s going to be at least ten feet, if not more, between the elevator, if
allowed, and the other residence. So, we would contend that there’s sufficient space in
there so it’s not too crowded, so to speak.”

Mr. Edes: “Matt, I'm not trying to tell you what to say, but if you're referring to the
alignment of the houses...” Mr. Nichols: “Yes.” Mr. Edes: “Your client’s house is landward of
the adjacent house so the configuration of the elevator would not block the view as if they
were all in the same alignment.” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir. You said it better than | did. But
that's right; the houses are not aligned like in many places on the beach. So, | think that
makes this request — as a unique component to it. You may not see another like that.”
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Acting Chair Partin: “Mr. Edes, can | ask a question while we've got this picture up?”
Mr. Edes: “Yes, ma’am.” Acting Chair Partin: So, you’re saying this is at least ten feet from
here to here or from their closet point?” Mr. Nichols: “I think it would be at least ten feet
because, right now, the setback from the house to the property line is roughly 7.5 feet and
then the elevator is going to be approximately a 4-foot cube.” Mr. Blair: “Well, let's be clear
about that, you're talking about the setback from somebody else’s house included in that
distance, correct — 15 feet total between the houses; 7.5-foot setback from the house south
view plus Dr. Temple’s?” Mr. Nichols: “Right, so the 7.5 from Dr. Temple's house to Dr.
Temple’s property line is roughly 7.5 feet. And then on the other side of that, | presume they
have setbacks.” Mr. Blair: “So, you're talking about leaving a setback for Dr. Temple of 3.5
feet on his property?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir. That's correct.” Acting Chair Partin: “But it's the
property line, it's not necessarily right beside the house.” Mr. Blair: “It's still a 7.5-foot
setback.” Mr. Nichols: “So, basic math in my head, it has to be at least ten feet because
you'd be 7.5 — even if the Rowe house was pulled all the way up, you'd still be over ten feet
from the elevator to the house.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Because it's the neighbor's 7.5 feet plus his
3.5 feet.” Mr. Nichols: “Correct.” Mrs. Koballa: “But....... if the house was built prior, it could
be closer.” Mr. Nichols: “It could be closer.” Mrs. Koballa: “You keep saying four feet by four
feet. If you can go back to Exhibit C, the drawing says 7.9 — I'm trying to figure out that
square and | can’t make out the numbers.” Mr. Nichols: “And that exhibit, | understand, is
based upon a previous submittal to the Town for, | think it was some work that was done on
the house in 2007. | think what the contractor did, was to take that as sort of your site plan,
so to speak, and drew in the footprint of the elevator. And, the 3.6 feet is the space that
would be between the elevator, if built, and the property line.” Mrs. Koballa: “So, the porch is
6.5 feet wide and the elevator is only four feet. Is that what Tony....” Mr. Nichols: “So, based
on the exhibit here, again I'm sort of approximating the footprint of the elevator, but the
depth of it, | think he’s got it at 48.5 inches; roughly four feet. So, it takes up more space
width-wise because it's got the arms and the mechanical components of it. We mentioned
the lattice, here's another aerial view. You mentioned the alignment of the houses. Then
turning to Dr. Temple’s house specifically; this is street level or driveway level of where the
elevator would go on the side of the house and where it would end up on the upper deck.
Here's just another viewpoint to show sort of the space it would go. We think having it on
the side would allow, again, for some screening. It's the way that the house is set up, it
really makes sense to put it there from a convenience of proximity to the driveway. It would
be very difficult — | don't know if you could put it in the back, from an accessibility
standpoint.” Acting Chair Partin: “It looks like he has a walkway.” Mr. Nichols: “It is but...”
Dr. Temple: “See right there, in the straight to our gate, there is a stair right there which
makes it difficult to put it on the other side of the house. It's very narrow on the side forward
around that stair. The problem is... and | might be out of line here, but basically, my wife
has orthopedic issues and family members in walkers and wheelchairs, we cannot continue
to live in this house if we don't have some kind of elevator. We looked at all the possible
sites and Mr. Wilson talked about putting it in the front. Well, that does take away our
parking space or makes the person who parked cross the sidewalk.... Also, our water
main....the corner of the house is on the porch. Directly below that is our water main and all
the water access to the house goes in there. And, | think that was eliminated because it just
didn’t seem to be as reasonable as where we have it now.”

Mr. Nichols: “I have a few more photos here. Again, this is underneath the area that
Dr. Temple was just referencing. This is looking out toward the street. And then this is a
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photo taken on the deck where the elevator would meet the deck.” Dr. Temple: “And | point
out that — let's go back to the one you just had — you can see the palm trees in my yard and
in Mr. Rowe’s yard. And these all effectively screen his view from this portion of my house,
so, it's not something that would be an eyesore in here. And he pretty much encourages
this placement.” Mrs. Koballa: “Where’s the entrance door on that second level to enter the
house? Do they go in on the front of the house or do they go in on the side?” Dr. Temple:
“Well, the door on the front of the house is to our bedroom. So, that's not where people
normally would come in. That's more of a safety issue as an exit for fire and stuff like that.”
Mrs. Koballa: “That door right there is your bedroom? Up top?” Dr. Temple: “Yes, the top
one: the door is access to our bedroom. It is not an entrance. The entrance to the house is
down that corridor and then around to the sound side of the house.” Acting Chair Partin:
“But it's all on that porch area.” Mrs. Koballa: “I'm just trying to understand why you couldn’t
have it in the porch area. Or as the elevator comes up and then it exits off towards the water
which would take them to the entranceway.” Dr. Temple: “Because that would block the
access of the house — the fire exit and the windows.” Mrs. Koballa: “Is there a window on
that corner of the deck?” Dr. Temple: “No, but it would block the access to get around the
corner to the rest of the house.” Mrs. Koballa: “You’d have 2.5 feet left over. So, it's 6.5-foot
width porch; you'd still have 2.5 feet — and | don’t know if it's to code — if 2.5 feet is enough
width for someone to get around for fire purposes.” Mr. Wilson: “You need 36 inches.” Mr.
Nichols: “It seems to be very tight. Madam Chair, | think | have finished with my
photographs. I'm glad to try to answer any questions based on those and what I've said. |
was going to go through the four criteria; | know the Board knows it very well.”

Mr. Edes: “Matt, before you do that, do you want to introduce your power point as
Exhibit D?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir, including the criteria and we had the exhibits we already
turned in.” Mr. Edes: “So, Exhibit D will be received into evidence without objection from
staff. And to clarify, Mr. Nichols made reference to an Exhibit B — that's already in the
agenda packet. If you'll note some of those things, | just want the record to be clear. When
Mr. Nichols was referring to those exhibits, they are exhibits that were part of the application
that's contained in what we’ve marked tonight as Exhibit A.” Mr. Nichols: “And | have a
paper copy of that....”

Mr. Nichols: “As to the four criteria, we do think that this is the classic case of a
variance and why variances are in the code or in the statute and the code as sort of a safety
valve for situations that come up. If you're trying to write a code to envision every scenario,
the code would be as big as the phone book. Then you still wouldn’t cover all the scenarios.
So, the variance process is there, | think, to address specific instances and we think this is
one of those. Allowing the variance in this case would allow the homeowners to continue to
reside in their residence they’ve owned for more than thirty years. | would correct — it hasn't
been their primary residence for thirty years but since their retirement, it's been their
residence for some time. The property is already nonconforming. The house, again, is over
fifty years old and it’s not as if you were building a new house.... you would be better able to
plan around it. My guess is sixty years ago - fifty years ago — the residential elevator trend
probably wasn’t very common. And it's really just not practical to retrofit sort of the interior of
the house for an elevator. It would be very difficult. And the adjacent neighbor to the south
not only doesn’t object, they support the variance request. As far as the hardship, again, the
house may predate zoning or at least what we refer to as ‘modern zoning’. And it's a small
older home; it's not designed with any additional space that would be adequate for the
interior elevator or retrofitting the house. And there are unique circumstances with the way
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it's situated in comparison to the neighbors to the south. The hardship certainly wasn’t
created by or resulting from the actions taken by the applicant. This is something that we
think the Town’s policy would support... Certainly, Wrightsville Beach has always been a
family-oriented beach with not only generational but multi-generational families and this is
an instance where it would allow long-term residents that continue to age in place and have
their family members and friends to continue to enjoy their residence that they have had for
a long time. In that sense, | think it fits squarely with the fourth criteria — the spirit and intent
and purpose of the ordinance. It will not negatively impact the adjacent property. It actually
makes the property safer for the Temples and their residence... And | think, again, it's a
classic Wrightsville Beach cottage and they want to continue to enjoy it for many, many
years. We appreciate your consideration of their request and we’re glad to try to answer any
questions that you may have.”

Mr. Turpin: “One thing | didn’t understand — on the elevator, the door will be facing
the street, right? The door will be facing south?” Dr. Temple: “The door will be facing north.”
Mr. Turpin: “So, the maximum width on this is 68.25 inches — that's the maximum width; so
you're flipping the other way so the maximum width is 48.50 from your drawing?” Mr.
Nichols: “Yes, sir. That's correct.” Mr. Turpin: “I guess that’s right at four feet, isn’t it? Four
feet and a half inch, is that what you were speaking to about the half inch?” Mr. Nichols:
“Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Because you're right in the setback at 7.5, right? The house is 7.5 so
everything off of the house, you're going to have to count, right? The house is right at the
7.5 feet.” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir. So if you went out four feet; that would leave you with 3.5
feet” Mr. Turpin: “Because this says 48.5 inches so.... You'd have to be over another half
an inch. So, | just want to make sure you've got the right size here because it says 48.5
inches on the drawing; so, that was my first question.” Mr. Nichols: “Well, the drawing, |
think, provides for some clearances in there....” Mr. Turpin: “If you're good on it, I'm good.
I'm just bringing it to your attention.” Mr. Nichols: “Well, it's a very good point and what | was
alluding to earlier is if the Board was inclined to grant the variance, we would appreciate
consideration of just a little cushion in there, because when the actual contractor gets in
there, we may need a few inches here or there. We wanted to ask for as minimal as we
could, based on our drawing of the house. But in thinking more about it, it would make
sense for us to have an additional four inches or so. And | don’t think it would have any
practical impact.” Mr. Turpin: “I don’t disagree with that. I'm just looking at what your
drawing is.”

Mrs. Brunjes: “Tell me about the door — what direction is north?” Mr. Turpin: “I didn't
know which way he had it but if you look at the drawing, if the door faces the street, you'd
need 68.25 inches, if it faces the street; which he said it was not. So, you turn it the other
way.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Face the neighbor.” Mr. Turpin: “Face the neighbor, right? It doesn’t
matter, either way, face the neighbor or face south, that way is 48.5 inches. | was just
saying, he’s already at 7.5 feet; he’s already over with this. If he goes with 48, he's already
off a half an inch so it wouldn’t work. But he needs to make sure his inches are correct. That
was my first question. Second one was, this revision that was made to the statute only
relates to point two, right? It says ‘a variance may be granted when necessary’, it only
relates to point number two; it doesn’t override all four of them, right; it just relates to
number two?” Mr. Edes: “I don’t want to go on record, like | said, this just came into place
and effective July 15t. | don’t know that there’s any case law construing what it means. That
sentence has been added to the second criteria.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay....." Acting Chair Partin:
“Of course, they didn’t know that at the time they applied so they could have said, ‘Well, you
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know, like you just pointed out, my wife has issues.” Mr. Blair: “I think there's a bigger issue
here than that application of this statute. | think it's a situation for the Town to go back
because that's a whole island issue.” Mr. Turpin: “And | don’t disagree with that. That's the
reason | was saying, if that applies to all four, it's an easy decision. And so, | didn’t know —
that's my point....." Mr. Nichols: “It's new and | don’t even think it was in place when we
applied for that.” Mr. Blair: “It wasn’t. This was in July; you were in April.”

Acting Chair Partin: “Dr. Temple, do you know what we're referring to here?” Dr.
Temple: “I think you're talking about disability and whether it predated the application. Well,
we were on the agenda for June, so if it didn’t pass until July, we asked for it before then.”
Mr. Blair: “But | don’t know that this Board is in the business of deciding what disabled —
thats a Town UDO deal. | don’t think we're that Board.” Mr. Edes: “Well, the Board can
consider and must consider that criteria after July 1st” Mr. Blair: “In the 160?" Mr. Edes:
“Yes. sir.” Mr. Blair: “You're saying this thing you handed out to us?” Mr. Edes: "Yes, Sir.
The part | underlined is a new addition by the General Assembly. We have a consultant to
bring our UDO up to the newly passed or implemented legislation of 160D. But the law is
clear, whether you change your ordinances or not, this is the law for variances.” Mr. Blair:
“So, how do we determine whose disabled and who isn’t? What'’s the definition of that?” Mr.
Edes: “Based on the evidence.” Mrs. Koballa: “What if there are other options and they're
just not choosing that option?” Mr. Edes: “Well, if you read the sentence — | believe the
sentence encompasses that. ‘A variance “may” — not “shall’ — may be granted.” Mrs.
Koballa: “Okay.” Mr. Edes: “When “necessary”, another operative word, and “appropriate”,
another operative word. So, in other words, the General Assembly did not intend that every
person with a disability would be able to get a variance. You have to look at the facts in front
of you.” Mrs. Koballa: “Okay. Thank you.”

Mr. Turpin: “May | ask one more follow-up question?” Acting Chair Partin: “Yes.” Mr.
Turpin: “If the Legislature passed it, it doesn't matter if local Council passed it. If the
Legislature passed it, it's the law.” Mr. Edes: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay. And this is the
new law you're telling us to consider?” Mr. Edes: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Okay. Whether the
local City Council and no one accepted it?” Mr. Edes: “We are a creation of the General
Assembly. We only have the power that they give us. And they have stated that as of July
one, this is the law.” Mrs. Brunjes: “It's also saying “may” be granted. They're not saying we
have to,” Mr. Turpin: “I fully understand that. | just wanted to make sure we all understood,
we're using this to make our decision tonight. The next thing is, you're not positive about it.
Just making sure I'm clear.... Right now you're thinking it just relates to number two.” Mr.
Edes: “The way it's written, | think it's reasonable. We can go into closed session if you
want legal advice. We can't deliberate in closed session. If you want to go into closed
session, we can go into closed session to preserve the attorney-client privilege.” Mr. Turpin:
“| only have one more question.” Mr. Edes: “I'm not dodging it; I'm just saying there’s going
to be minutes....” Mr. Turpin: “Because | think that’s very important because that’s going to
override all of this.” Mr. Edes: “| agree with you that the interpretation is important, but since
there will be minutes of this; that is attorney-client advice that's protected by law. So, for a
very limited time, we can go into closed session as a Board of Adjustment. I'd be happy to
go into that.” There was Board consensus not to go into closed session. Mr. Blair: “It's not
like you have to do anything. You have to consider all of the evidence that’s been given. So,
don’t get hung up on this one statute that it means anything other than in the whole context
of everything that's been before us.” Mr. Turpin: “Fair enough.”
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Mr. Edes: “I will just say if you look at criteria two, the beginning of it: second
sentence, “Hardships resulting from personal circumstances as well as hardships resulting
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the
basis for granting a variance.” But then | think the General Assembly’s intent is, “However, a
variance may be granted when necessary and appropriate if it's based on a disability.” In
other words, the first sentence says you can't do it just because Brian Edes has a personal
hardship. But if that personal hardship is a disability, then you may do it. Even though it's
personal to me, when appropriate and necessary — there’s no “shall” in there.” Mr. Turpin: ‘|
understand that and based upon the evidence we've heard, because we don’t do anything
outside of what we hear in here.... He’s got family members that have difficulty getting up
the stairs. So, that seemed to me it would meet the test. So, that was clear to me on that.
Let me move on to something else, if | could. On number three, can you tell me how you're
meeting the test for number three? How do you meet that test? | think I'm good with one,
two and four, but | don’t see three. Tell me how you do three.”

Mr. Nichols: “Number three is: “The hardship did not result from actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing property with knowledge that
circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a
self-created hardship.” So, this really is a function of — we all age. | mean, we all are getting
older and it's something where that is what's necessitating the accommodation. And | do
think it's relative to the criteria that the General Assembly did just put in the statute. It was
certainly relevant to them to say, ‘Hey, this is something to consider. It comes down to
should anybody be required to move because they are maybe having access issues to their
house. To me, it goes to the idea of having your house and being able to enjoy it for many
years. Clearly that house was built in the sixties and modern houses would probably have
been different or it would have accommodated or foreseen the elevator-type scenario or
installed an elevator. But it's difficult to retrofit the interior of the house for an elevator given
its age. It’s just nothing that they created. They didn’t create the situation.” Mr. Turpin: “Can
| ask you another way?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Turpin: “Would that apply to every
house in Wrightsville Beach or half the houses on Wrightsville Beach?” Mr. Nichols: “Not
necessarily.” Mr. Turpin: “If | want to put wrap-around stairs on my house because it would
make it more convenient for me ..... It would extend out into the setback and the city would
say no. I'd say it would make it more convenient for me ... they would say no because it'sin
the setback. I'm trying to figure out what the difference is.” Mrs. Brunjes: “And another thing,
in this case, he just doesn’t want to put it in another place. He wants it on the side. It's been
said, the word “could”, Tony’s word, is he could put it in another place that would make it not
need a variance. But he’s chosen — that it really would look better on the side, be more
convenient on the side. But it doesn’t mean that, the statement that you used that he’'d have
to move from his house, he would not have to move from his house. He just wouldn’t like
the location of the elevator.” Mr. Nichols: “And | misspoke and | don’t want to say that this is
causing them to move from their house..” Mrs. Brunjes: “Right. That was an example, |
know.” Mr. Nichols: “But what I'm saying is that in any variance, or in many variances, there
may be an alternative to it. But it's not — is there any alternative under the sun to address
this situation. The previous case, the folks could have taken off the back of the house and
corrected it, so...” Mrs. Brunjes: “Well, there were some circumstances that made that
different from this.” Mr. Nichols: “I'm not comparing the two cases; they're totally different.
But what I'm saying is in many instances, there perhaps is a way to sort of fix it, but is it
practical? Is it a hardship? Is that correction creating an unnecessary hardship? And in this
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case, with the neighbor supporting the location and given the layout of this house and how
it's laid out to the other houses. | think Dr. Temple testified as to the utilities.” Mrs. Brunjes:
“And we don’t know that for sure. It's hearsay.”

Dr. Temple: “We did look at every single placement to the house. | don’t know if we
have for the front but we have a garage on the front that couldn’t be blocked. The windows
we didn't want to block. The exit door from our bedroom, we didn’t want to block. And we
didn’t want to put it over the water and we didn’t want to eliminate a parking place by putting
it on the outside of the porch. So, that pretty much takes care of the whole front of the
house. The back of the house is more difficult to get access. If you're coming to visit, you'd
have to go all the way down the side and around. And that would be objectionable to the
Rowes because that's there view of the water just to look at an elevator tower. The place
where we’re in consultation with — where the best place for us to do it without blocking any
other porch access, was to append it to the right where those stars are. And that is also our
neighbors’ preferred place to put it because it's not in his direct view; it does not diminish his
property. And, on the other side of the house, there is no porch and no access. We did have
an architect, some years ago, look at putting....There is no place on the inside of our house
to put an elevator.” Mrs. Brunjes: ‘I know; I've been there.” Dr. Temple: “You've been in our
house?” Mrs. Brunjes: “| had an old house. | get it.” Dr. Temple: “There are other places
along the side that it could be put but the place we're showing is most accessible to
somebody visiting; most accessible to us.... It's not fifty feet away. It's just the most logical
and most appealing to our neighbors.” Mr. Blair: “But is it a hardship? | get what you're
saying but that’s not getting through the hardship piece.” Dr. Temple: “The hardship is we
can't get up the steps. We need an elevator. And then, the front of the house — there’'s a
reason not to do it all across the front. Either blocking the garage, blocking the access,
blocking the window...” Mrs. Brunjes: “We should have a whole picture of the front so we
could see it.”

Acting Chair Partin: “Is there any way to put it slightly inserted — | mean, like bring it
in slightly onto the porch?” Mr. Nichols: “Okay, there is the front of the house”. Dr. Temple:
“And you can see there was a garage which we can’t do and the few windows — it would
block those bedrooms. There’s a door which you don't want to block. It's to the right where
Mr. Wilson talked about putting it there. | said we only have three parking places and they're
tight and if we eliminate one of our parking places, it just adds to the parking problem on
North Channel anyhow.” Mrs. Koballa: “The distance from the house to the street is twenty-
nine feet. So, four feet would eliminate a parking spot? You could bring that elevator out
four feet and that's going to eliminate the entire spot?” Dr. Temple: “But it does interfere
with the — it's a waterline to the house which is right behind this...” Acting Chair Partin: “How
many cars can you park — six....?” Dr. Temple: “Six!" Mrs. Brunjes: “No; just three.” Dr.
Temple: “| think there’s a picture.” Acting Chair Partin: Okay. There you go.” Dr. Temple:
“There’s our parking.” Acting Chair Partin: “Okay, got'cha. It looked like it was longer than
that.” Mr. Nichols: “This is how people park.” Mrs. Brunjes: “That's not his property that you
saw in that other picture. That was the street.” Dr. Temple: “And you can see, from their
point of view, this to here is visually blocked by large trees. This is where he would like it
and then where we'd like it. And any other place would be less desirable to both....”

Mrs. Brunjes: “Do you have the fire access, Matt?” Mr. Nichols: “| want to make sure
| understand what you're asking.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Can a fire truck get through enough to
maneuver through there?” Dr. Temple: “No, you can’t get anything through there.” Mrs.
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Brunjes: “No, now you don’t want to say that. If you build a home, elevator along the side, is
it going to interfere with a fire truck and firefighters trying to get around back? Is there plenty
of room left?” Mr. Nichols: “There’s quite a bit of vegetation in there now and there’s a fence
there, right?” Dr. Temple: “It's between the properties.” Mr. Nichols: “The elevator would
open up between those two pilings.” Acting Chair Partin: “Were you going to leave the
vegetation there? Is that what you were planning?” Dr. Temple: “Pardon.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Were you planning to leave all this vegetation there?” Dr. Temple: “I had to take this
out and this is where the elevator goes.” Acting Chair Partin: “It looks like a hedge right

there would be in the way.” Dr. Temple: “Itis.”

Mr. Nichols: “l think | do understand the questions that are being raised. Could you
put the elevator somewhere other than where we’re proposing? The answer would be yes
you could do that but | don't think that's the test, is what I'm saying. Under the
circumstances, is a variance request reasonable and does it meet the criteria in this
circumstance? And we would respectfully contend that it does.... There are probably other
variance requests that you see where there’'s perhaps some other way to address the issue.
But it doesn’t necessarily mean you can’t come in and ask for a variance because of the
unique circumstances of the case; and under all the circumstances that it would meet the
criteria of a variance given the facts of the case.”

Mrs. Brunjes: “If somebody comes before this Board in two years and say, ‘Oh, well
you let Dr. Temple do so and so, and take four feet in his setback, | don’t see why we can't
do the same thing’.” Mr. Nichols: “Well, | think it would be based on whatever facts they
present — does the neighbor’s house present itself in the same way that it does to the Town
Board? Is the neighbor objecting? Are there issues with — it's kind of a configuration of the
parking; the access to the bedrooms in the front. Dr. Temple testified some kind of unique
things about the layout of the house. So, | think it's like with all variance requests, | don’t
think anyone sets a precedent for any one of the other ones. It's purely based on the facts
of each unique case. But | don’t want to stand before you and say you couldn’t put the
elevator anywhere else in this house, because that's not the case. But, we do think that this
request is reasonable and meets the criteria. And it is a unique set of circumstances for why
we would want to put it there for this house and it would fit with this house and the
neighbors are okay with it. Again, as a practical matter, is it going to have any impact at all
on the Town? | don’t think anyone’s here to speak against this either and that's a great deal
— anything that comes before the Board. How do the neighbors feel about it because they
would be the ones that would be potentially impacted by it? But, | don’t know if you would
even notice it being there if put in that location. Whereas the other way, it is very visible,
very sort of conspicuous. | think landscaping wouldn’t really come into play if you put it in
the front.....you could move landscaping out in the front of it there. So, it's just under this
unique circumstance of the house and how it's set up in comparison to the other house. It
seems to be the optimal spot for it and it would be the most efficient spot for it and the
neighbor supports it.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Did each one of these people get a letter? Did they get
any notification?” Mr. Wilson: “Yes.” Mrs. Brunjes: “This is a list of adjacent property owners
— they all got letters? It came out of your packet — adjacent property owners within 150 feet.
All these people received letters, right?” Mr. Nichols: “The Town sends that out.” Mr. Wilson:
“We did send the letters out; yes.”

Acting Chair Partin: “Tony or Mr. Edes, if we were to approve this, can we require
also that lattice work be required around this elevator to kind of keep it kind of secluded?”
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Mr. Wilson: “I think you can put conditions on a variance.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Because
they're pretty ugly. Those things are ugly.” Acting Chair Partin: I think they need screening
around it. | mean like those lattice screening things that he showed us.” Mr. Edes: "You
could make that a condition but | would want the applicant to state on the record.....Mr.
Nichols already said he’d do it and that's why he wants the extra few inches; that he agrees
to that condition — or the applicant agrees to that condition.” Acting Chair Partin: “Did you
hear what we were discussing?” Dr. Temple: “I'm trying to talk to....." Acting Chair Partin:
“So, | was asking if we were to approve this elevator where you want it, can we also require
the lattice work to be put around it.” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, ma’am. Absolutely you could. And
the other thing | was going to point out that, we recognize that this variance would be
unique to this house. At some point, Dr. Temple realizes that his house may get torn down
and rebuilt and the variance would not — it would be unique to the circumstances of this
house. And if you all wanted to do this, he’s saying — Dr. Temple is fine with making it
unique to his ownership of it....” Mrs. Brunjes: “Remember we did that in that Minute Market
thing that if that property sold, that could not be with it. It had to change back.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Would that mean then that they’d have to tear the elevator down — whoever owns —
whoever bought it?” Mr. Nichols: “There might be some problems with enforcing that. | don't
know but we were just saying — clearly it would be...” Mrs. Brunjes: “But if you tear it down,
the next house can’t use that four feet.” Mr. Nichols: Absolutely not. It's used specifically
... (Everyone talking at once.) Mr. Edes: “We could make it a condition that it is applicable
to the present structure. That structure, if modified more than fifty percent of its value, that
variance expires. And | would like the applicant to agree on the record to that condition.” Mr.
Nichols: “Yes, absolutely....”

Acting Chair Partin: “So, it sounds like to me they need two extra....” Mr. Edes:
“We've not closed the evidence yet. That would be better discussed during deliberations;
we're still in the evidentiary gathering process. Mr. Nichols, do you have anything else?” Mr.
Nichols: “No, sir. | think we’ve covered it. We appreciate the consideration..” Mr. Edes: “And
just for clarity, in the event the Board were to consider issuing a variance, does the
applicant agree to some sort of lattice covering?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir.” Mr. Edes: “And
does the applicant agree that if the variance is issued, that if the existing structure as it sits
out there today exceeds the fifty percent rule, for whatever reason — do you understand
what I'm saying?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes.” Mr. Edes: “That the variance extinguishes on its own.”
Dr. Temple: “Yes. In fact, | had suggested it.” Mr. Nichols: “And the lattice, which we think
would be great, we just might need a little bit more ...." Mr. Edes: “That was my other
question | had. What is the actual number of inches you're asking for?” Mr. Nichols: I
believe we asked for four feet and | was doing the math earlier, but, as we pointed out
earlier, it could be close. Is it possible to get an extra — and this is only for the purpose of
installing the elevator that we're proposing.... We need four to six inches for field
adjustments and getting the lattice in there or the landscaping, whatever the Board
considers appropriate.”

Acting Chair Partin: “Mr. Edes, can you tell us where we are at this point?” Mr. Edes:
“| was trying to get a clarification from Tony on something. So, Mr. Nichols, you're saying 52
inches?” Mr. Nichols: “48 plus 4 inches, | think, would do it...” Dr. Temple: “Whatever it
requires....and | don't know but 48 has some ...” Mr. Nichols: “Not to exceed a certain
amount — it's just basically whatever needs to be accommodated in that space.” Mr. Edes:
“And the lattice you put up there, do you know the brand of whatever?” Mr. Nichols: “We
would be glad to make it conditioned on this photograph which was taken straight from his
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house. It would match this.” Dr. Temple: “It's not a brand; it's made from scratch.” Mrs.
Brunjes: “It's wood. That's handmade.” Mr. Edes: “What are the dimensions on those?” Dr.
Temple: “...with my wife — lattice versus slats.. but it would be something appealing of that
nature and that's what she’s chosen before. So, | think that will probably be what it will be.
But there was another picture that showed a slat instead of lattice; it would be a much
smaller scale than that.”

Mr. Edes: “Anything else, Mr. Nichols?” Mr. Nichols: “No, sir.” Mr. Edes: “‘Any
questions from the Board?” Mrs. Brunjes: “So you could put a “not to exceed” factor in
there?” Mr. Edes: “.... And Mr. Nichols, | believe, is on the record “not to exceed 52 inches”
is acceptable.” Mr. Nichols: “That’s four inches. However the Board pleases — | think six
inches would more than cover it. | don’t think it would be that but six inches would be ample
to put in either the lattice or...” Mr. Edes: “Given that 160D changes it significantly, you
either agree or don’t agree on a condition. So, would the applicant agree to a ‘not to exceed
52 inches’?” Dr. Temple: “...It seems reasonable to me. | can’t imagine lattice being more
than ....” Mrs. Brunjes: “Is this thing going to be right up to the house or is it going to come
out from the house a little bit?” Mr. Edes: “You mean the lattice?” Mrs. Brunjes: “No, the
elevator.” Dr. Temple: “It will be right against the house.” Mrs. Brunjes: “Okay cause four
feet is his elevator measurement. Is he going to need a little more to move it away...?” Mr.
Nichols: “54 inches would be acceptable — six inches.....” Mr. Edes: “And ‘not to exceed 54’,
would you agree that that condition would be up to 54 if it were actually needed.” Mr.
Nichols: “If needed, yes...” Mr. Edes: “And if the Town were to request for you to have a
professional state that we need 53 inches or 54 inches in a sealed document; to provide
that document, do you agree to that condition?” Mr. Nichols: “Yes, sir.”

Mr. Edes: “Any other questions for Mr. Nichols? Does anyone else in the audience,
sworn in and signed up to speak? (No response.) At this point, we'll need a motion to close
the evidentiary portion of the hearing. But let me just inventory what | believe the evidence
was. We first heard from Mr. Wilson who introduced the item; we received into evidence
Exhibit A which was the agenda packet pages 28-44; and then Exhibit B which was Mr.
Wilson's power point; they both came in without objection; we then heard from the
applicant’s attorney, Mr. Matt Nichol; he introduced as Exhibit C, a packet of documents
which included a letter from the manager of the LLC that owns the adjacent property, the
deed as well as the tax card: Dr. Temple then testified by way of answering questions from
the Board: Mr. Nichols then put on a power point, we received that into evidence as Exhibit
D without objection; then Mr. Nichols, on the record, indicated that he would agree to a
condition that's not to exceed 54 inches; and the condition that it be covered by some sort
of lattice exterior. Matt, do you have anything to add to any of that?” Mr. Nichols: “No, sir.”
Mr. Edes:” Madam Chair, at this point, it would be appropriate to entertain a motion to close
the evidentiary portion of this hearing.” Acting Chair Partin: “Do | have a motion to close?”
Mr. Blair: “Motion.” (6:55 p.m.) Mrs. Brunjes: “Second.” Acting Chair Partin: “All in favor.”
(Vote 5-0 in favor of the motion.) Mr. Edes: “Now is the time to discuss it. You can take it
criteria by criteria or, like in the last one, if someone feels strongly one way or the other, we
can make a motion to either approve or deny the application and discuss it.”

Mr. Blair: “Well, I'll go because I've got a strong opinion about it. Number three — Mr.
Nichols, you said yourself that — I'm having difficulty with the fact that Dr. Temple has
choices, although they’re not good choices; they're not his first or second choices of where
to put that elevator. But because you have choices you don’t want to make, I'm having a
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hard time with the hardship part of all of this because | know where you'd like to place your
elevator and | think that's probably a good choice. But | just don’t think that that's a
hardship; | just don’t think it is. And, not that this matters, but I've been on this Board for like
eight years and | know what a hardship looks like. When you have a choice even though
you're not able to do your first choice, you don't like it or it blocks a window, or whatever;
we've heard these before. I'm having a hard time getting through number three, to be
honest with you. That's my opinion — that's just my opinion.” Mr. Nichols: “I know the
hearing is closed. If 'm able to speak — If | didnt articulate it..” Mr. Blair: “It's closed.” Mr.
Edes: “Madam Chair, would you like to reopen the evidentiary portion of the hearing?”
Acting Chair Partin: “I think we have a “no” here.” Mrs. Koballa: “I'm in agreement with Bill. |
wrote down, ‘didn’t want,’ ‘less desirable’ — those are not hardship words. And, as much as |
agree with them, | think it would be a great thing to do, my job is to find the hardship and |
don’t see it.” Mr. Nichols: “Can |...."” Mr. Edes: “Mr. Nichols, I'm going to let you, subject to
Madam Chair's approval, respond by way of an argument or persuasion but not offer
additional evidence.” Acting Chair Partin: “If that's appropriate, Mr. Edes, | guess we can.”

Mr. Nichols: “I would just be remiss if | didn't feel like | was doing a good job
articulating why | think it is a hardship. | think the key word is, and it's in the very first
criteria, is ‘unnecessary hardship’. Is it necessary? Could you put the elevator in a different
place? And you could; we've established that. But is it necessary to do that in this instance?
What's it achieving? If you look at all the four criteria as a whole, which is what you look at;
and the spirit and intent of the ordinance and the purpose of the ordinance. And the
hardship here, he’s identified the parking area and the way his house is configured. | guess
| just go back to the word ‘unnecessary’. Is it necessary to — essentially what's being
accomplished here in light of all the circumstances? The neighbor’s support of where he
wants to put it. No one else against it. The layout of his house. It's just the most logical
place to put it. So, again, | don’t think the criteria is ‘could you find some other place to do it.
Has he proven some hardship? And | think he has.” Mrs. Koballa: “Can | ask a question?
Are we supposed to meet all four criteria or only one has to be met? (The other Board
members said — all four.) Okay, I'm just clarifying. Thank you.”

Mr. Turpin: “ agree. Unless the disability exception overrides all four, | don't think
you meet the test. And | think it’s pretty clear you don’t meet the test on this, so | don’t think
| can support your petition for this. You have options on where you want it; some are
undesirable. But, sometimes that's what we have to do. If you think about the lots on this
island, many of them are in the same situation; they're fifty feet wide; that's all you have to
work with. And, if you can’t make it fit; it doesn’t fit. So, | don’t think | can support your
position unless this new change in the statute changes one through four.” Mrs. Brunjes:
“And it doesn’t.” Mr. Turpin: “That would be the only reason | would say. Right now, we're
saying it only does two. So, that’s what we’ve got to go with.” Mr. Edes: “I'm saying that the
courts haven't issued a blog or say that what it is doing is qualifying the previous two
sentences, which is ‘hardships resulting from personal circumstances, etc. etc. To me, it's
qualifying ‘well if that personal circumstance is a disability, then you could meet this criteria
when appropriate and necessary.” Mr. Turpin: “Can | ask one more question? This is not
local ordinance; this is state statute, this whole thing. So, when this sentence was inserted,
it was inserted in that particular position.” Mr. Edes: “This is exactly how it appears in the
statute. And arguably, since this application was received prior to July 1, this may not come
into play. But out of an abundance of caution, since we're hearing it after July 1, | put this
before you.” Mr. Turpin: “Fair enough. Thank you for that.”
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Acting Chair Partin: “Anyone else — Kitty?” Mrs. Brunjes: “No, I'm good.” Acting Chair
Partin: “Do we want to have a motion? Does anyone want to entertain a motion — either way
— Bill?” Mr. Blair: “What is the process?” Mr. Edes: “We've been discussing criteria three. Is
there a motion that the applicant has either met or not met criteria three? That would be an
appropriate motion at this point.” Acting Chair Partin: Well, have we agreed that he’'s met
everything but three?” Mr. Turpin: “| think he probably doesn’t meet one and three.” Mr.
Blair: “Do you want to make the motion?” Mr. Turpin: “Yes, [l make the motion. | don't
support the applicant because | feel like he doesn't meet the test provided for in one and
three.” Acting Chair Partin: “Do | have a second?” Mr. Blair” “Second.” Acting Chair Partin:
We have a motion and second on the table, is there any more discussion? So, we'd like to
entertain a vote. Okay, let’s all vote. All in favor of denying his application.” Mr. Edes: “The
motion was on the grounds that it does not meet criteria one and three. (The vote was
unanimous in favor of denying the variance.)

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD, THE MEETING
WAS ADJOURNED AT 7:05 P.M. BY MOTION OF MRS BRUNJES AND SECOND BY MR.

BLAIR.

Respectfully submitted,

Sylvia J. Holleman
Town Clerk
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Planning and Inspections

MEMORANDUM
TO: Chairman and Board of Adjustment Members
from: Tony Wilson, Director of Planning and Parks '\W
Subject: 14 A & B Mallard Street Appeal
Date: June 20, 2022
G Tim Owens, Town Manager

Background:
WBRP, LLC property owner of unit 1 and Teresa Henry property owner of unit 2, 14 Mallard

Street are requesting an appeal from staff’s interpretation of lot frontage to the Town of
Wrightsville Beach Board of Adjustment.

This appeal is specifically from a decision set forth in a letter dated February 10, 2022 from
Tony Wilson, Planning and Parks Director within the Planning Department. The proposed site
plan for the new structure located at 14 Mallard Street indicated a setback of 7.5’ for the rear,
7.5’ on the north side, 7.5’ off of Crane Street and 37 feet on the ocean side. After reviewing
the submitted CAMA Minor Permit Application, it was discovered that the front setback is not
consistent with the Town’s definition of lot frontage.

Project History:
Zoning Permits were issued for 3 Duplexes on May 27, 1977 for 10, 12, and 14 Mallard Street.

The site plan number 78-12-1 for the 3 duplexes was approved on December 19, 1978 by John
Nesbit. The setbacks indicated on exhibit A and B were 7.5’ for sides, 7.5’ for the rear and a 12’
front deeded setback on the ocean side. The main entrance for these properties was from
Mallard Street by a private drive.

Town Definitions:

Lot Frontage

The front of a lot shall be construed to be the portion nearest the street. For the
purpose of determining yard requirements on through lots, all sides of a lot abutting
parallel or approximately parallel streets shall be considered frontages. For landlocked
waterfront lots, the side of the lot abutting the water shall be considered the rear lot line
and the side opposite this rear lot line shall be considered the front lot line.




Street

Includes any public way, road, highway, street, avenue, boulevard, parkway, alley,
lane, viaduct, bridge, and the approaches thereto within the town and shall mean the
entire width of the right-of-way between abutting property lines.

Staff Comments:

After reviewing the information in the file for 10,12 and 14 Mallard Street, Staff based
their initial zoning decision and assumed that the original site plan number # 78-12-1
was an approved site specific plan and would be exempt from the current town zoning
setback requirements. In a letter from J. Franklin Martin to the Mayor Robert Sawyer
and the Board of Aldermen, a request was made to direct the Building Inspector to
permit our development of the three ocean front lots between Crane and Mallard Streets
in accordance with the attached plan, Exhibit A and Exhibit B, this letter indicates a
twelve foot deed restriction for the front yard requirement.

Town Staff did have conversations and sent emails with the owners, surveyors and
designers of 12 and 14 Mallard Street for the required setbacks for the new structures
as approved by the Town on 12/19/1978. When Town Staff reviewed the site plan again
submitted concerning the front setbacks we questioned if the original site plan was an
approved site plan and had questions about the town’s definition of lot frontage that may
apply to this site. A letter was send to High-tide Design LLC on February 10, 2022
denying the site plan for 14 A & B Mallard Street because of the front yard setback of
7.5’ from Crane Street.

Board of Adjustment:

Section 155.4.4 Appeals, Variances, and Interpretations.
155.4.4.1 Appeals.

(A) The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide appeals from decisions of the
UDO Administrator concerning the interpretation or administration of Chapter 155 of the
Town Code.

(B) Appeals under the provisions of this Section may be filed by any person who has
standing under G.S. § 160A-393(d) or the Town may appeal a decision to the Board of
Adjustment. An appeal is taken by filing a notice of appeal with the Town Clerk. The
notice of appeal shall state the grounds for the appeal.

(C) Decisions concerning the interpretation or administration of this chapter shall be
given in writing to the owner of the property that is the subject of the decision and to the



party who sought the decision, if different from the owner. The written notice shall be
delivered by personal delivery, electronic mail, or by first class mail.

(D) The owner or other party shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of the written
notice within which to file an appeal. Any other person with standing to appeal shall
have thirty (30) days from receipt from any source of actual or constructive notice of the
decision within which to file an appeal.

(E) It shall be conclusively presumed that all persons with standing to appeal have
constructive notice of the decision from the date a sign containing the words “Zoning
Decision” or “Subdivision Decision” in letters at least six inches (6") high and identifying
the means to contact an official for information about the decision is prominently posted
on the property that is the subject of the decision, provided the sign remains on the
property for at least ten (10) days. Posting of signs is not the only form of constructive
notice. Any such posting shall be the responsibility of the landowner or applicant.
Verification of the posting shall be provided to the official who made the decision.
Posting of a sign as described herein is not required but shall be done at the discretion
of the landowner or applicant. The Town may post such sign.

(F) The UDO Administrator shall transmit to the Board of Adjustment all documents
and exhibits constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is taken. The
UDO Administrator shall also provide a copy of the record to the appellant and to the
owner of the property that is the subject of the appeal if the appellant is not the owner.

(G) An appeal of a notice of violation or other enforcement order stays enforcement
of the action appealed from unless the official who made the decision certifies to the
Board of Adjustment after notice of appeal has been filed that because of the facts
stated in an affidavit, a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property or because
the violation is transitory in nature, a stay would seriously interfere with enforcement of
the ordinance. In that case, enforcement proceedings shall not be stayed except by a
restraining order, which may be granted by a court. If enforcement proceedings are not
stayed, the appellant may file with the official a request for an expedited hearing of the
appeal, and the Board of Adjustment shall meet to hear the appeal within 15 days after
such a request is filed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, appeals of decisions granting a
permit or otherwise affirming that a proposed use of property is consistent with the
ordinance shall not stay the further review of an application for permits or permissions to
use such property; in these situations the appellant may request and the Board may
grant a stay of a final decision of permit applications or building permits -affected by the
issue being appealed.

(H) Subject to the provisions of subdivision (G) of this subsection, the Board of
Adjustment shall hear and decide the appeal within a reasonable time.

(I) The official who made the decision shall be present at the hearing as a witness.
The appellant shall not be limited at the hearing to matters stated in the notice of
appeal. If any party or the Town would be unduly prejudiced by the presentation of
matters not presented in the notice of appeal, the Board shall continue the hearing. The
Board of Adjustment may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the decision
appealed from and shall make any order, requirement, decision, or determination that



ought to be made. The Board shall have all the powers of the official who made the
decision.

155.4.4.5 Hearing Required on Appeals, Variances and Interpretations.

(A) Before making a decision on an appeal or an application for a variance or
interpretation, the Board of Adjustment shall hold a hearing on the appeal or application.

(B) Subject to subsection (C), the hearing shall be open to the public. All persons
presenting evidence or arguments shall be sworn in by the Chairman prior to the
presentation of any evidence or arguments.

(C) The Board of Adjustment may place reasonable and equitable limitations on the
presentation of evidence and arguments and the cross-examination of witnesses so that
the matter at issue may be heard and decided without undue delay.

(D) The Board of Adjustment may continue the hearing until a subsequent meeting
and may keep the hearing open to take additional information up to the point a final
decision is made. No further notice of a continued hearing need be published unless a
period of six weeks or more elapses between hearing dates.

(E) The required application fee and all supporting materials must be received by the
UDO Administrator before an application is considered complete and a hearing
scheduled.

155.4.4.6 Notice of Hearing. The UDO Administrator shall give notice of any hearing
required by Section 155.4.4.5 as follows:

(A) Notice of hearings conducted pursuant to Section 155.4.4.5 shall be mailed to
the person or entity whose appeal, application, or request is the subject of the hearing;
to the owner of the property that is the subject of the hearing if the owner did not initiate
the hearing; to the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel of land that is the
subject of the hearing; and to any other persons owning real property, any portion of
which is located within 150 feet of the lot that is the subject of the hearing.

(B) In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the Town may rely on the county tax
listings to determine owners of property entitled to be mailed notice.

(C) The notice must be deposited in the mail at least ten (10) days, but not more
than twenty-five (25) days, prior to the date of the hearing. Within that same time period,
the Town shall also prominently post a notice of the hearing on the site that is the
subject of the hearing or on an adjacent street or highway right-of-way.

155.4.4.7 Burden of Proof in Appeals and Variances.

(A) When an appeal is taken to the Board of Adjustment in accordance with
Section 155.4.4.1, the UDO Administrator shall have the initial burden of presenting to
the board sufficient evidence and argument to justify the order or decision appealed
from. The burden of presenting evidence and argument to the contrary then shifts to the
appellant, who shall also have the burden of persuasion.



(B) The burden of presenting evidence sufficient to allow the Board of Adjustment to
reach the conclusions set forth in Section 155.4.4.2(B), as well as the burden of
persuasion on those issues, remains with the applicant seeking the variance.

155.4.4.8 Board of Adjustment Action on Appeals and Variances.

(A) Appeals. A motion to reverse, affirm, or modify the order, requirement, decision,
or determination appealed from shall include a statement of the specific reasons or
findings of facts that support the motion. A favorable vote of the majority of the
members shall be required to reverse or modify the order, requirement, decision or
determination appealed from.

(B) Variance. The Board must take a separate vote and vote affirmatively (by a four-
fifths majority-see Section 155.3.13) on each of the required findings stated in
Section 155.4.4.2(B). Insofar as practicable, a motion to make an affirmative finding on
each of the requirements set forth in Section 155.4.4.2(B) shall include a statement of
the specific reasons or findings of fact supporting such motion.

(C) A motion to deny a variance may be made on the basis that any one or more of
the criteria set forth in Section 155.4.4.2(B) are not satisfied or that the application is
incomplete. Insofar as practicable, such a motion shall include a statement of the
specific reasons or findings of fact that support it. This motion is adopted as the Board's
decision if supported by more than one-fifth of the Board's membership (excluding
vacant seats).

155.4.4.9 Evidence/Presentation of Evidence.

(A) The provisions of this section apply to all hearings for which a notice is required
by Section 155.4.4.6.

(B) All persons who intend to present evidence to the Board of Adjustment shall be
sworn in by the Chairman.

(C) Allfindings and conclusions necessary to the issuance or denial of the requested
permit or appeal (necessary findings) shall be based upon competent, material, and
substantial evidence.

(D) The entirety of a quasi-judicial hearing and deliberation shall be conducted in
open session.

(E) Parties to a quasi-judicial hearing have a right to cross-examine witnesses.

(F) Factual findings must not be based on hearsay evidence which would be
inadmissible in a court of law.

(G) If a Board of Adjustment member has prior or specialized knowledge about a
case, that knowledge should be disclosed to the rest of the Board and parties at the
beginning of the hearing.

(H) The Board of Adjustment, in conducting the hearing, has the authority to issue
subpoenas to compel testimony or the production of evidence deemed necessary to
determine the matter.



155.4.4.10 Modification of Application at Hearing.

(A) In response to questions or comments by persons appearing at the hearing or to
suggestions or recommendations by the Board of Adjustment, the applicant may agree
to modify his application, including the plans and specifications submitted.

(B) Unless such modifications are so substantial or extensive that the Board cannot
reasonably be expected to perceive the nature and impact of the proposed changes
without revised plans before it, the Board may approve the application with the
stipulation that the permit will not be issued until plans reflecting the agreed upon
changes are submitted to the planning staff.

155.4.4.11 Record.
(A) Accurate written minutes shall be kept of all such proceedings.

(B) Whenever practicable, all documentary evidence, including any exhibits,
presented at a hearing as well as all other types of physical evidence shall be made a
part of the record of the proceedings and shall be kept by the Town for at least two
years.

155.4.4.12 Written Decision.

(A) The Board shall determine contested facts and make its decision within a
reasonable time. Every quasi-judicial decision shall be based upon competent, material
and substantial evidence in the record. Each quasi-judicial decision shall be reduced to
writing and reflect the Board’s determination of contested facts and their application to
the applicable standards. The written decision shall be signed by the Chair or other duly
authorized member of the Board.

(B) A quasi-judicial decision is effective upon filing the written decision with the Clerk
to the Board. The decision of the Board shall be delivered by personal delivery, or
electronic mail, or by first-class mail to the applicant, property owner, and to any other
person who has submitted a written request for a copy prior to the date the decision
becomes effective. The Director of Planning and Parks or his/her designee shall certify
that proper notice has been made.

(C) Every quasi-judicial decision shall be subject to review by the Superior Court by
proceedings in the nature of certiorari pursuant to G.S. § 160A-393. A petition for review
shall be filed with the Clerk of Superior Court by the later of thirty (30) days after the
decision is effective or after a written copy thereof is given in accordance with
subsection (B) above. When first-class mail is used to deliver notice, three (3) days shall
be added to the time to file the petition.

Public Notice:

The legal advertisement announcing the June 29, 2022 Board of Adjustment Meeting
concerning the appeal application for 14 A& B Mallard Street ran on June 14, 2022 in
the Star News. The site was posted on June 14, 2022 and letters to adjacent property
owners were sent out on June 16, 2022.




Requested Action:
As deemed appropriate by the Board of Adjustment.

Attachments:

—

Owners Application and Supporting Documentation

Original Exhibit A & B site Plan

Site Plan # 78-12-1 J.T.N. 12-19-78

Zoning approval for 10, 12 and 14 Mallard Street May 27, 1977
Letter from J. Franklin Martin

1974 Town Definition of lot Frontage

Staff Letter dated February 10, 2022

List of adjacent property owners

14 Mallard Street Site Photos

©ENDOA®N






APPLICATION FOR AN APPEAL
To Be Submitted with Application Fee to the Planning and Inspections Department

PROPERTY INFORMATION

STREET ADDRESS: J‘-f A""')L‘/ﬁ ma/”glr‘a, Sj’ WB \\/L

STRUCTURE USE:; ()C?/MMBRCIAL RESIDENTIAL  ( ) OTHER
zonmve: R~ 2 WR “lwe ‘FAMM/I THEUSRILOTIS: X _Conforming Non-Conforming

W@K‘ ;\LI.C_, S
PROPERTY OWNER: Name: ]E;_‘K'(fﬁ: Uenwy = 779, magiicdill S h MC

L

OWNER'S ADDRESS: (ifdifferenyy 1900 S. LIV [ 'o.PrlC PRun e 28903
OWNER PHONE: (9 10_347:- 6196 FAX:

ADDRESS: yAlY

PHONE: ( ) . FAX:

INING PROPERTY OWNERS (TO BE ATTACHED)

The names and address of all adjoining property owners as listed in the New Hanpver County Tax Records is to be
attached to this application, This list includes across the street and adjacent parties. It should also include parties in
interest, such as applicants, owners and co-owners. For each name listed, provide an envelope printed with the name
and address of the adjoining property owner, return address specified as Town Hall, PO Box 626; Wrightsville Beach
NC 28480 and stamped with first class, non-metered postage. The envelopes are used for required notice.

(attach additional information if needed)

Cite Violation: ( ) Building Code Violation Code Reference:

(*)Zoning Code Violation Code Reference:__~ .

() Fire Code Violation Code Reference:

pq\omor Code Reference: W @, tade 1S5 LnCl See
Notice Issued on (date) 2-10° 202t Inspector /Bﬁut] Wy \5}5“1\ |-5§ ywof

ISSUE DESCRIPTION  (TO BE ATTACHED)
Please attach a description of the issue and the case for the appeal.
Please also attach any supporting materials,

Appeal application fee $500.00 (Non-Refundable) Paid Date: M

*#] understand that the fee for this application is non-refundable,** [Q i V‘ (Initial)
#] furthermore certify that I am authorized to grant and do in fhot grant permission to Planning Staff and his/her
agents to enter on the aforementioned lands in connectio wiu)ve\iraluating information related to this permit
pplication,** - (Initial)

§ gt .
APPLICANT SIGNATURE _(C MAAa ' LTSN DATE 3~ IOiZUJ Z
S s5/K/=T_




lew Hanover County

PARID: R05813-008-012-001

hltps:ﬂ’elax.nhcgov.com!ptﬂ)nlulelsfPrlnlDala!cl.aspx?pin-=R058 13-00...

WBRP LLC 14 MALLARD ST
Parcel
AlRID 316719.62,5236.000
Address 14 MALLARD ST
Unit 1
Cily WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH
Zip Code -
Nelghborhood EQ016T
Class RES-Resldential
Land Use Code 18-Single Fam Alt Townhome
Living Units 1 '
Acras
Zoning R-2-WB TWO FAMILY
Legal

Legal Description
Tax District

Owners (On January1sl)

UNIT 1 CLUB COLONY TWHS Il & 10' OF UNAMED ALLEY
WB

——— .

= e

Owner
City
State
Country
Zip

// WBRP LLC

RALEIGH
NC

27615 &

=

nl"l

THE DATA IS FROM 2022

ANNANIT 085 AN



lew Hanover County

PARID; R05813-008-012-000

https:ﬂelax.nhcgov.conu'puoalaletsfPrInlDamlct.aspx?pIn=R058I 3-00...

HENRY TERESA 14 MALLARD ST
Parcel
AltID 316719.62.62056.000
Address 14 MALLARD ST
Unit 2
Clly WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH
Zlp Code -
Nelghborhood EBO16T
Class RES-Resldenllal
Land Use Code 18-Single Fam Att Townhome
Living Units 1
Acres
Zoning R-2-WB TWO FAMILY
Legal
Legal Descriptlon UNIT 2 CLUB COLONY TWHS Il & 10' OF UNAMED ALLEY
Tax District WB
Owners (On January1sl) ) . )
Owner HENRY TERESA
City WILMINGTON
Slate NC o -~
Counlry e iR
Zip 28403
THE DATA IS FROM 2022

2NAINT 0iAR ANA



TOWN OF WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS o 321 CAUSEWAY DRIVE ¢ P.O. BOX 628
WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH, N.C. 28480 « 910-258-7937

Planning and Inspections February 10 2022
- 1

High-Tide Deslgn LLC
716 § Lumina Avenue
Wrightsville Beach, NC 28480

Re: 14 Mallard Street
Dear, Mr. Conley,

After further review of the éite plan for 14 Mallardl Street that you submitted for consideration
in the CAMA permit process, the zoning setbacks show on the site drawing are incorrect. The
front yard setback Is 15 feet and It should be measured rom the Crane Street right-of-way, The
rear and side yards are 7.5 feet. Please see the attached ordinance language that that led to
this interprétation, A zoning compliance permit cannot be Issued for the site as It Is proposed.

THIs zoning Interpretation can be appealed in accordance with the Wrightsville Beach Town
Code, Chapter 155. Unlfied Development Code, Section 155.4.4. if you have any questions, | can
be reached at 910-239-1746. :

Best Regards,

-

Toify Wilson, Director of Planning and Parks
Town of Wrightsville Beach

Attachments:

1. 155.4.4 Appeals, Varlances and interpretations




Lot Frontage

The front of & lot shall be construed o be the portion nearest the street. For the purpose
of determining yard requirements on through lots, all sides of a lot abutting parallel or
approximately parallel sireets shall be consldered frontages. For landlocked waterfront
lots, the side of the lot abuitting the water shall be considered the rear lot line and the side
opposite this rear lot line shall be consldered the front lot line.

Street

Includes any public way, road, highway, street, avenue, boulevard, parkway, alley, lane,
viaduet, bridge, and the approaches thereto within the town and shall mean the entire
width of the right-of-way between abutting property lines.
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Section 155,4.4 Appenls, Vaviances, and Interpretations.

155.4.4.1 Appeals.

(A) The Boaxd of Adjustment shall hear and decide appenls from decisions of the DO Administrator

()

- (©

(D)

®)

@

@

2015 822,

concerning the intorpretation ox administeation of Chaptex 155 of the Towi Code.

Appeals yuder tho provisions of this Scotion may be flled by any person Who has sfanding wndex
3.8, § 160A-393(d) or the Town may appeal a decision 1o the Board of Adjustment. An appeal Is
{aken by ﬂlmg anotice of appeal with the Town Clerk. The notlce of appeal shail state the grounds
for tho appeal.

Decislons concerning fhe intexpretation ot atministration of this chiaptex shall be given in walting
fo the owner of the propexty that is the subject of the declslon and to the pacty who songht the
declsion, if different from the ownor. The wrilten notice shall be dolivered by personal delivery,
plectronic mail, or by first class mall,

"The owner or other paxty shall hiavo thicty (30) daya from xeceipt of he written notice within which
to file an appeal. Any other persoin vilth standing to appeal shall have thirty (30) days from recelpt
from any source of actual or constwetive notice of the decision within which fo file an appeal.

It ghall be conclusively presumed that all persons with standing to appeal have constmetive notice
of the decislon from the date a sign containing the words “Zoning Decislon” ox “Subdivision
Decislon” in letters at least six inches (6" high and identifying the means to contact an official for
information about the decision is prominentiy posted on fhe property {hat Is the subject of the
declsion, provided the sign yemaing on the property for at least ton (10) days, Posting of signs is 1ot
the onty form of constructive sotice. Any such posting shall be tho responsibility of the landownei
or applicant. Voriflcation of the posting shall be provided to the officlal who made the decision.
Yosting of a sign a8 deseribed hereln is not required but shall be done at the discretion of the
{andowner ot applicant, The Town may post such sign: '

The UDO Administrator shall transmit to the Board of Adjustment all docwnents and exhibits
constituting the xecord upon whicli the action appealed from js taken. The UDO Administrator shall
also provide a copy of tho yecoid to the appeliant and fo fhe ownicx of the property thatis the subject
of ihie appedl If the appellant Js not ho owner.

An appenl of a iiotice of violatlon or other enforcement ofder slays enforcoment of the actiont
appealed from nless the offieial who made the deoision cexfifles to the Board of Adjustment after
notice of appeal has been filed that becavise of tho facts siated in an affidavit, o stay would cause
jmminent perll fo life or properly ox becanse tho violation ls {ransitoxy In nature, a stay wonld
sorlously interfére with enforcement of the ordinance, In that caso, onforcoment proceedings shall
ot be stayed except by & yestraining oxder, which may bo gianted by aconxt, If enforcement
proceedings are not stayed, the appellant may filo with the official a request for an expedited heatlng
of the appenl, aud the Board of Adjustment shall meot to heav {he appeal within 15 days after such
arequestis filed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, appenls of decisions granting apermit ox otherwlse
affirming that a propose use of propexty is consistont with the oxdinauce shall not slay the further
review of an application for péxmits or permissions (o use such property; in those situations the
appellant may requost and tho Board may



155.4.4

()

M

Wrlghtsvillo Beach - Appendix A 86

grant & stay of a final decision of permit applications ox building permits affected by tho issue boing
appealed.

Subiject to the provislons of subdivision (@) of this subscction, the Board of Adjustment shall hoar
and decide tho appeal within a reasonable time,

"The official who mado the decision shall bo present at the hearing as a witness, The appellant shall
not be Nimited at ihe hoaring to matterd stated in tiio notico of appeal. If any pacty or tlie Tows
would be unduly prejudiced by the presentation of matfexs not presented in tho notice of appeal, the
Board shall continue the hearing, The Bonard of Adjustment may revexse ox affirm, wholly or parlly,
or may modify tho deoision appealed from and shall make any order, xequirement, decision, or
deteimination that qught to be mado, The Board shall have all the powers of the officlal who mado

the decision.

155.4.4.2 Varlances.

4

®)

©

®)

2015 8-22

An application for n variance shall be submitted to the Board of Adjustment by filing a copy of tho
application with the UDO Administrator. Applications shall be handled in tho samo manmor a8
applicationg fot permlts. - :

A varlance may be granted by the Boaxd of Adjusirent if it concludes that, by granting tho
variance, the following findings ave supported by ihe Board of Adjustmert decislon:

(1) Unnecessary hardship wonld vesult from the strict application of the ordinance. 1t shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in {he absence of the varlance, no reasonable use can be made
of the property.

(2) 'The haxdship resulls from conditlons that axe pecullar to the property, sucl as location, size,
ortopography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, a8 woll as hardships resulting
from conditlons that are common o the nelghborhood.ox the gonoral public, may not bo the
basis for granting a vatlance.

(3) The hardship did not rosult from actions faken by the applicant ox tho propexty owner. Tho act
of purchasing property with knowledge fhat circumstances oxist that may justify the geanting
of n variance shall not be regarded as a self-croated hardship.

(4) The requested varjaico is conslstont with tho spixit, purpose, and intent of the ordinande, such
that public safety Is seoured, and substantial justice is achloved.

Appropriate conditions may e jmposed on any variance, provided thatthe conditions are roasonably
related to tho varlance.

"Phe nature of the vatlance and any conditions alfached to it shall be entered on the faco of the
zoning permit, or the zonlng permit may simply note the issuance of the varlaice and xefer to the
rliton record of the vatiance for furthor Information. All such conditions are enforceable in the
same mauner as any other applicable requivement of this Ordinance.
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155.4.4.3 Interpretations.

(A) The Board of Adjustment Js authorlzed to intexprot the zoning map and to pass npon disputed
questions of lot lines or distriot boundary linés and similpr questions, If such questions arise in the
contoxt of an appeal from a declson of the UDO Adniinistrator, they shall be handled as prov ided
in Secton 155.4.4.1.

(B) Anapplicatlon fot n map jntexpretation shall be sibmitted to the Boaxd of Adjustment by filing a
standard Town of Wrightsville Beach appeal form with UDOQ Adminlsteator, The application shall
contain sufficlent nformation to enable the boatd to make the necessaty inferpretation,

(C) ‘Where uncortaluty exists as to the boundaries of distylts as shown on the Official Zoning Map, the
rules of intorpretation as specified in Section 155.1,10 shall be applied, Where nncerlaintios
continue 1o exist after apploation of the above wles, appeal may be taken fo the Board of
Adjustment as provided in Section 155.4.4,1 of this Qudinance,

(D) Interpretations of the location of floodway and floodplain boundary lines may be made by the UDO
Administxator as provided in Article 155.11, Part 1.

155.4.4.4 Requests to be Heard Expeditlously. A8 provided in Article 155.3, the Board of Adjustment
shall hoar and decide all appeals, varianco xequests, and requests for Interpretations, Including map boundarles,
as expeditiously as possible, consistent with the need to follow regularly established agonda procedires, provide
notice In accoxdance with Section 155.4.4.6, and obtain tho necessary information to make souid decisions.

155.4.4.5 Hearing Required on Appeals. Varlances and Inferpretafions.

(A) Before making a decision onan appeal or an application for a variance or interpretation, the Board
of Adjustment shall hold & hearlng on the appeal or application.

(B) Subject to subsection (C), the heating shall be open fo the public, All petsons presenting eyldence

or argumonts shall be sworn in by the Chairman prlor to the presentation of any evidence or
arguments.

2015 S-22
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(C) The Board of Adjustment may place reasonablo and equitable lmitations on the presentation of

oyldenco aid argnments and tho orgss-examination of wilnesses 80 {hat tho rattex at lssue may be

neard and decided without unduoe delay.

(D) The Board of Adjustment may continue the hearing watil a subsequet meoting and may keep the
hearing ope o fake additional Jnformation up to the point a final declsion is made, No furthor

notico of a conthmed hearlng need be published unless A period of six weeks or moxo elapses
between hearing dates.

(B) The required application fee and all suppoxting malerlals must be yecelved by the UDO
Adminstratox before-an application is consldered completd add a hearing scheduled.

155.4.4.6 Notice of Hearlng. The UDOQ Administrator shall glve notice of any hearing required by
Section 155 4,4.5 as follows:

(A) Notico of hentings conducted pursuant 10 Section 155.4.4.5 shall bo malled to the person ox entity
whose appeal, application, or roquest is the subject of the hearlng; to the ownex of tho property fhat
is tho subject of the hoaxing if the owner didxot initiate {he hearing; to fhe owners of all parcels of

1and abutting fhe parcel of land that is the subject of the hearing; and to any ofhex persons owning
real propetty, ALY portion of which is Jocated within 150 feet of {he 1ot that Is the subect of the

hearlng,

In the absence of evidonce fo the contrary, the Town may rely on the county lax listings to
determine owners of propexty entitled to bo mailed notice.

(C) The notlce ust be deposited in the mail at least ten (10) days, but not more than twenty-five (25)
days, priox to the date of the heailng, Within that same time pexiod, the Town shall also prominently
post & notico of the hoaring on i site that is the subject of the hearing ox on At adjacent street or

highway right-of-way.
155.4.4.7 Burden of Proof in Appeals and Varlances.

(A) When anappeal is taken to {he Board of Adjustment in accordance with Section 155.4.4.1, the UDO
* " Administrator shall have the Initial burden of presenting to the board sufficient evidence and
argument to justify the order or declslon appealed from. The buxden of presenting evidence and
axgument to tho contraxy {hen shifts to the appellant, who shall also have the buxden of persuasion.

© (B) The burden of presenting evldence sufficient to allow the Board of Adjustment to xeach the
conclustons set forth in Scetjon 155,4.4.2(B), as woll as he bhxden of persuasion on those issies,
reraing with the applicant seeking the variance.

155.4.4.8, Board of Adjustment Actlon on Appeals and Varlances.
(A) Appeals. A motlon to reverse, affirm, ox modify the order, requitement, decislon, or determination
appéaled from ghall includo-a statement of the specific reasons or findings of facts {hat support the

motion. A. favoxable vote of the majority of the members shall be required to yeverse OX modify the
order, requirement, decision ox determination appealed from.

2015 S22
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Varlance. 'The Board myst take a soparate vote and vote affirmatively (by a founx-fifths majority-sco
Sectlon 155,3.13) on each of the required findings stated In Scction 155.4.4.2(B). Insofay as
practicable, a sotion to. mako an affirmative finding on each of the requirements set forth in Secfion
155.4.4.2(B) shall Include a statement of the specific réasons or findings of fact snppoxting such
motion,

A motion to deny & vatlance miy be made on thie basls that any one or more of the cxlteria set forth
in Section 155.4.4.2(B) are not satisfied or tlit tho application is incomplete, Insofar s practicable,
guch a motion shall include a statement of tho specific reasons or findings of fact that support it.
This motlon Is adoptéd ad the Board’s decislon i supported by more than one-fifth of the Boaxd's
membership (excluding vacant seats).

155.4.4,9 Evidence/Presentation of Evidence,

)

®)

©

®)
(&)
)

©)

(1)

The provisions of this section apply fo all hearings for which, a notice is xequiréd by Scotion
155.4.4.6.

All persons who infend to present evidence to the Board of Adjustment shall be sworn in by the
Chalrman,

All findings and conclusions necessary to the lssuance or denial of the requested pérmlt or appeal
(necessavy findings) shall be based upon competent, material, and substantial evidence,

The enfiroty of a quasl-judicial heaving and doliberation shall be conducted in open sesslon,
Partls to a quasl-judiclal hearing have a right fo cxoss-examino witnesses.

Pactual findings must not bo based on hearsay evidence which wonld be inadinissible in a court of
law,

Y¢ a Board of Adjustment member has prior or speclalized knowledge about a case, {hat knowlédge
shonild be disclosed fo the rest of the Board and parties at the Dbeginning of the heating.

"The Board of Adjusiment, in conducting tho heaing, has the authorlty to lssue subpoenas to compel
testtmonly or the production of evidenco decmed necessary 0 determine {he matfer,

155.4,4.10 Modificatlon of Application at Heaying.

GV

)

2015 5-22

In responso to questions or comments by persons appearing at the hearing or to suggestions or
recommendations Gy the Board of Adjustinent, tho applicant may agreo to modify his application,
Including (he plavs and specifications submitted,

Unless such modifications ace so subsiantlal or extensivo that the Board cannot reasonably be
expeoted to percelve the nataxe and impact of the proposed changes without revised plins beforo
it, the Board may approve iho application with the stipulation that the permit will not be fssued until
plaus yeflecting the agréed upon changos are submitted to the planning staff.
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155.4.4.11 Record.
(A) Accurito written snimtes shall bo kept of all such pyocecdings.

(B) Whenever practicable, all documentaxy evidenco, including any exhibits, presented ata hearing as
well as all othex types of physical evldence shall be made a paxt of the record of the proceedings and
shall bo kept by the Town fox at least two yeats.

155.4.4.12 Written Decision,

(A) Tho Boaxd shall determine contesfed facls and make lts decision withina reasonable time, Bvery
quasi-judicial decision shall be based uwpon compefent, matérial and gubstantial evidence in fhe
record, Bach quasi-djudiclal decision shall be reduced to writing and reflect the Board’s

determinatlon of contested facts and {lieir application fo the applicable standaids, The wuitten
decislon shall Yo signed by the Chalr ox othet duly authorlzed smeniber of the Board.

®m A quasl-judicial decision s effective upon filing the writton decision with the Clerk to the Board.
'The decision of the Board shall be delivered by pexsonal delivory, ox electronic mail, ot by
first-class mail to the applicaut, property owney, and fo any othey pexson who has submitted a
wrilten xequest for a copy prior to the date {ho decision becomes effective. The Direotor of Planning

and Parks o his/her designee shall cortify that proper notlce has been made.

(C) Byety quasl-judiclal decision shall be subjeot to xeview by the Superior Court by proceedings in the
natuie of cerfiorarl pirsuant to G.S. § 160A-393. A petition foi review shall bo filed with the Clerk
of Supetior Court by the Jatex of thirty (30) days aftex tho declslon is effective o after a written
copy (hiereof is given in accordance with subsection (B) above. ‘When first-class mail is used to
deliver notice, three (3) days shall be added to the tline to file the petltion,
(Oxd. 1695, passed 11-8-12; Am, Ord. 1727, pssed 5-13-14)

Section 155.4,5 Conditional Use Pexmits,

155.4.5.1 Purpose and Applicability. This Ordinauce provides for a number ofuses to be located by xight
in each genexal zoning district subject to the use nieeting corlaln area, helght, yard, and off-strect parking and
Joading requiroments, In addition to these uses, {his Oxdinance allows sommo 1ses to be allowed In these districls
as o conditional use subject fo issuauco of a condifional use permit by the Board of Aldermen upon
recommendation of the Planning Board, The puipose of having the usos being conditional Js to ensure that they
would be compatible with surrounding developmontand in keéping with tho purposes of the general zoning district
in which they ate located and would wiect othes oriteria as set forly in this scotion. All conditional use pexmits
require somo form of a sito plan as outlined in Seetion 155.5.3.

155.4.5.2 Application Process/Completeness.
(A) The deadline for which a condifional use permit application shall be filed with the UDOo

Administrator Is the fivst businoss day of the month in the month prior to the meeting at which the
application will be heard. Pormit application forms shall bo provided by the UDO Administrator,

2015 822
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Tn thio conrsp of evaluating the proposed conditional use, the Planning Boaxd ox Board of Aldermen
may requestadditional infoimation from the applicant. A request for any additional information may
slay any further conslderation of the application by tho Planning Board ox Boaxd of Aldormen,

No applicstion shall be desmed complotp unless it contalizg ox Is accompanted by a site plan drawn
to scalo which complies with the requiremonts contained In Section 155.5.3 and a fep, in accordance
with a feo schedule approved by the Board of Aldermen for the submittal of conditional use pexmit
applications,

One (1) haid copy and one (1) digital copy of an application, and all aftachments and maps, for a
conditlonal use permit shall be submiited to the YDO Administrator,

155.4.5.3 Technical Review Procedure/Plaining Board Review and Comment,

Gy

(®)

©

(D)

All applications for a conditlonal use permit, including required sito plans, shall follow the technical
review proceduro (Atlole 155.3, Part II) hofore boing submitted to the Planning Board for review
and comniént, The UDO Administrator shall foxrward any comments fecéived during the fechnical
reviow process to the Plarining Board.

The Planning Board may, in its xoviow, suggest reasonable conditions to the location, natuxe, and
extent of the proposed nso and its tefationship to surrouriding properties, parking areas, driveways,
pedestrian and yehicular cliculation systems, screening and Jandscaping, timing of development;
aud any other conditions the Board may find appropriate, The conditions may include dedication
of any rights-of-way or easements for strects, water, sewex, or other public ntilities necossaxy to
serve {ho proposed development.

The Planning Board shill forward its recommendation to tho Board of Aldermen withiu 45 days of
réviewing the application, If a recommendation is not made within 45 days, the ppplication shall be
forwarded to the Board of Aldermen withont 8 recommendation from tho Plauning Boaud.

Al comments prepired by the Plannbig Board shall bo submitted by the UDO Administeator, ‘This
yepresertative of the Planning Board shall be subject to the same serutiny ps other witnesses, Review
of the conditlonal use appileation by the Planning Board shall not be & quasi-judicial procedure, The
Planning Board shall include I its comments a stafeiment as to the conslsfency of the application
wlth the Town's currently adopted Comprehensive Plan, Comments of the Planniug Board shall bo
.considered with othei evideiico submitted at the public hearing.

155.4.5.4 Board of Aldermen Action.

&)

2013 S-21

Condlfional uso permits are quask-judicial decisions approved by 4 simple majority vote of the Boatd
of Aldeimen, Quasi-judicial declslons must be conducted in accordarico with Sectlons 155.4.4.9
hrough 155.4.4.12. For the purposes of this section, vacant positlons on ihe Board and mcmbers
who are disqualified from voting on a quasi-judicial malter'shall not be considered “members of the

Board” for calculation of flie requlsite mjority If thexe are np qualificd alternates available to tako
the place of such.members,



TOWN OF WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS « 321 CAUSEWAY DRIVE « P.O. BOX 628
WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH, N.C. 28480 » 910-266-7937

Planning and Inspectlons February.10, 2022

High-Tide Design LLC
716 § Lumina Avenue
Wrightsville Beach, NC 28480

Re: 14 Mallard Street
Dear, Mr. Conley,

Aftei further review of the site plan for 14 Mallard Street that you submitted for consideration
in the CAMA permit process, the zoning sethacks show on the site drawing are incorrect. The
front yard setback is 15 feet and It should be measured rom the Crane Street right-of-way, The
rear and side yards aré 7.5 feet. Please see the attached ordinance language that that led to
this interpretatlon. A zoning compliance permit cannot be Issued for the slte as it I$ proposed.

This zoning Interpretation can be appealed in accordance with the Wrightsville Beach Town
Code, Chapter 155. Unified Development Code, Section 155.4.4. if you have any questions, | can
he reached at 910-239-1746.

Best Regards,

Toffy Wilson, Director of Planning and Parks
Town of Wrightsville Beach

Attachmenits:
1. 155.4.4 Appeals, Varlances and interpretations

&

@«



Lot Frontage

The front of a lot shall be construed to be the portion nearest the street. For the purpose
of determining yard requirements on through lots, all sides of a lot abutting parallel or
approximately parallel streets shall be considered frontages. For landlocked waterfront
lots, the slde of the lot abutting the water shall be considered the rear lot line and the side
opposite this rear lot line shall be corisldered the front lot line.

Street

Includes any public way, road, highway, street, avenue, boulevard, parkway, alley, lane,
viaduct, bridge, and the approaches thereto within the town and shall mean the entire
width of the right-of-way between abulting property lines.



Adjoining properties
Mary Louise Ramsey

7{crane St

Wrightsville Beach NC 28480

Mark and Laura Southerland

1((%I1ard St

Wrighstville Beach NC 28480
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14 Mallard St appeal doc 3-10-2022

14 Mallard St. is a Mallard Street address and is only accessible from Mallard St.—it is
not accessible from Crane St. and never has been in as long as | have owned this
properly (over 30 years) and as clearly evidenced with the attached aerial photo.

As a result, the language attached to your letter referencing lot frontage supports the
site plan we submitted, which uses the 15 ft. setback from Mallard St.

This is also in line with your prior representations to us.

There is a private road extending from Mallard Street to the front of this lot that is platted
on the Town's records.

Your letter seems to take the position that the ocean side of Mallard St. does not exist.

The letter's new, unsupported position is contrary to prior decisions, contrary to your
representations and makes the lot unbuildable. As a result, the Town is arbitrarily
depriving my neighbor and myself the ability to use our property.

12 Mallard St.'s setback was just approved on the ocean side of Mallard St—which is
consistent with what you represented to us would be done as to 10 Mallard St. and our

property at 14 Mallard St.
12 Mallard was also approved to be built in front of both 14 Mallard and 10
Mallard ?? because it is being built that way?

| have always wanted to get my property in line with the house on the ocean on
Crane st that | did not try to stop them from building on that lot in the 90’s ( not
sure why that is not possible now either?
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APPL. AMTON FOR BUILDING PERMI™ ° Dato__

$ . TOWN OR WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH

T ua...mn e e
roousion: Mo, 1z, *14 iadiAen ST fones -z
Ovner: V.Mf. Associates P '

raaress One. Piediont CenTil, A [LANTA: é ZEHA-

Business Addross ' P

Contractor: MUZAY /'Aue;mmm@ Comoan'y S 2%

Address 3205 ke ST, KNWAINGTON L ALCL :

Type of Structure: - Btory ' Roof P}qp ()
b

DESGRIPTION OF WORK: Erecﬁ(v)/nlter() Repair() Demolish()# P;linga.( )

_Egect % DLt PuLbINGs _IN_ALOEDANCE. It PLANS .

State the in{;end;ad use of the property: eX UM VILDIMNGTS «

-ﬁ. v
C0ST OF CONSTRUCTION: %Wp “ per. DubLiy 59.:,0-:\:({ Fo. % 6’UILDIN6}§'/D '

Tt 48 understood by the o.wnor that the permit is conditioned on the
property being used for the above stated intent and shall in NO way

be used to oiroumvent the Codes and Zoning ordinances of the town of
Wrightsville Beach NOR the N,C. State Building Code NOR the Nabional
Bullding Code . . :

owNER OR REPRESENTATIVE:py ()., Zied Mo *oer

Date fﬂ%/ﬂ-?ﬂ }.I‘_i?‘? Time heeded rorchtion | \eAl_







guite 502, One Pledmont Centex:
Atlanta, Geoxgla 30305

il

Mr. Robert W. Sawyer
ox, Town of Wrightsville Beach
Wrightsville Beach, Noxth Carolina 28480

Dear Mayor Sawyer:

 We respectively request that the Board of Aldermen diveot the Building
Inspector to permit our development of the three ogean front lots between
Crane and Mallard Streets in accordance ¥with the attached plen, Exbibit A.

Exhibit B illustrates the buildable avea of each lot, given the Town of
Wrighteville Beach set back rements and the twelve foot deed restriotion
front yard requirement. ' Exhibit B shows, we believe, that the proposed develop-

ment: does not contravena the Dunes Protection Ordinance For the .following reasons:

a) The contours are not protective in that they 1ie well behind the primary
protactive 1line.of the’ bexit'and axe ‘detached hills rather’ than a txue

dune line.

b) Neither hill is more than sixteen feet 4n height. They appear to be
moxe Bignificant in part because Of the low area (5" MSL) between the
lots and the helin. . )

@) Without some alteration.of:thege hills, it would be virtually inpogsible
o bulld upon.the' lots,'

* . . Vexy txuly yours,
Ny S SN NS
J, Franklin Martin

JEMa g -

1 Wrightsyille Beach Board of Alderven

Me. John Nesbitt, Building Inspectoxr’
Mg, John' Newton, Town Attorxney’

!






§ 21-1 Wrightsville Beach Town Code § 21-1 (
\

Duplex. A building designed for or occupied-exclusively by two families. —~

Dwelling, multi-family. A huilding or portion thereof used or desigrated
as a residencoe for three or more families living independently of each other and
doing their own cooking therein on a site of less than one a¢re, (See Group

Housing Development.)
f:fm/z“ / !

2/ M\,,&Group housing development.’ A group of two or more dwelling structures

on a single property at-least two.acres not subdivided into the customary streets
f-",.)\and lots and which will not be so subdivided, and designed for occupancy by

/" separate families. Each dwelling structure shall consist of at-least-three resi-
dential units, Examples would be: Cluster-type subdivisions; row houses;
apartment courts, and housing projects. A project constructed for unit-own-
ership as-permitted by the North Carolina Unit-Ownership Act, when approved
under the requirements for group housing development as set forth in the sub-
division regulations of the town.

12222 - QGuest-home; tourist home. Any dwelling occupied by owner or-operator °
in which rooms are rented for guests and for lodging of transients and.travelers
... for com[??nsation, where not more than four rooms are used for -such purposes.

ay .~ Home occupation. Any use conducted entirely within a dwelling and car-
ried on by one or all of the occupants thereof, which use is clearly incidental and
sécondary to the use of the dwellirig for dwelling purposes and does not change
the character thereof, and no more than one person, not a resident of the prem-

. ises, is employed in connection with the home occupation. - Such occupation shall
‘be carried on solely within the main dwelling and shall not occupy more than
twenty-five percent of the floor area.of the-dwelling and provided further that
no mechanical equipment is installed or used except such that is normally used
for domestic or professional purposes.

R Hotel and motel. A building designed for occupancy by transients and
having five or more rooms or suites of rooms for rent to such transients.

2¢ « Lot. A parcel of land occupied or capable of being oceupied by a building
or group of buildings devoted to a common use, together with the customary ac-
cessories and open spaces belonging to same. A

2% .~ Lot, corner. A lotor portion of alot at the junction and abutting upon two
o more streets.

26 - Lot, depth of., The mean horizontal distance between the front and rear
lot lines »

2/ Lot frontage. The front of a lot shall be construed to be the portion near-
est the street, For the purpose of determining yard requirements on corner lots
and through lots, all sides of a lot adjacent to streets shall-be considered frontages.

3% Lot lines. The line bounding a lot as defined-hel'ein. - N

128
Supp . #1 ’ 6—74






TOWN OF WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS « 321 CAUSEWAY DRIVE « P.O. BOX 628
WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH, N.C. 28480 « 910-268-7937

ERS S S February 10, 2022

High-Tide Design LLC
716 S Lumina Avenue
Wrightsville Beach, NC 28480

Re: 14 Mallard Street
Dear, Mr. Conley,

After further review of the site plan for 14 Mallard Street that you submitted for consideration
in the CAMA permit process, the zoning setbacks show on the site drawing are Incorrect. The
front yard setback is 15 feet and It should be measured rom the Crane Street right-of-way. The
rear and side yards are 7.5 feet. Please see the attached ordinance language that that led to
this Interpretation. A zoning compliance permit cannot be issued for the site as it s proposed.

This zoning Interpretation can be appealed in accordance with the Wrightsville Beach Town
Code, Chapter 155, Unified Development Code, Section 155.4.4. if you have any questions, | can
be reached at 910-239-1746. -

Best Regards,

Tolfy Wilson, Director of Planning and Parks
Town of Wrightsville Beach

Attachments:

1. 155.4.4 Appeals, Varlances and Interpretations

&

‘«®
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